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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on the GEM are generally small and midsized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on the GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on the GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This annual report, for which the directors of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-Pharmacy Company Limited and
its subsidiaries (the “Group” and the “Directors”, respectively) collectively and individually accept full responsibility,
includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this annual report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ERW|E

As the Chairman and on behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Board”), | am pleased to present the audited consolidated result of
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018.

During the year under review, the total revenue of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was RMB647,672,000, representing
an increase of 0.4% as compared with RMB645,3083,000 for the
previous year. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company increased to RMB161,216,000 from RMB144,402,000 last
year. For the year ended 31 December 2018, basic earnings per share
increased to RMB28.78 cents from RMB25.77 cents last year.

The achievements in 2018 were the results of joint effort of our
staff at all levels. As the state speeded up the reform of the health
care system and increased the anti-corruption effort in the area of
pharmaceutical distribution, we overcame the unfavorable factors
relating to increasing production cost, dropping drug prices,
restriction on prescription of medicines and rising raw material costs,
and achieved the goals of projects set out in the beginning of the year.
As such, the Board would like to share its view on the Company’s
competitive edges with shareholders since these edges would allow
the Company to achieve further success in the coming years.

Firstly, we continued to emphasize on sales and achieved
breakthrough with the rapid growth of sales of our dominant products
to push our sales to a new height. While firmly focusing on the
sales target of one single product, namely, the Hai Kun Shen Xi
capsule (BEBEZB %), we exerted effort in increasing the sales of
mainline products, continued to strengthen academic promotion and
strived to explore uncharted markets while proactively organizing
and participating in academic conferences in relation to nephrology
at state level. Meanwhile, we continued to increase the sales of
Compound Huonaoshu capsule (£ A /&K EF B %), our branded
product, and made further efforts in the production and marketing of
injecting drugs, including Edaravone injection (& 2=;F §77%), which
propelled our sales to a new level.

AANERRESE((EFEDMAR2ZTHEE
AREECEXRBENARRRA(ARA]) KM
BRB(AR [ AEEDBE_FT—N\F+=-A
ST ALEFREZREREARE -

REBEFEERN BE-_ZT—N\F+_A=+—
BItFEAEBEBRA A AREEB47,672,000
TC 0 B EF A R#645,303,000 T A10.4% ©
REEARARBREZ B ARG BHEFARE
144,402,000 T = AR ¥161,216,0007T °
BHE—Z-N\F+-_A=1t—BIEEERERN
BHNBmEFARKB77TDIEINE ARKK28.78
ﬁj\ °

TR \FEEREETHARBHNRRE - &£
BREENREEBREENE  MABERR
RERBIENREST » KMRR T EERD
RAZER LA ZMEE BREQREIRER
REME ERSETFEZ - BR0TERFIEES
BEREEZ Al EFEMARZTRESZAR
RIABUTHFNNED  ZZEBBALAR
N2 FENEREBRIFNER -

I

B BPEERSUAHETERER  UEXE
miBREERRRY - HEXET LG - &
MEZEREREBERR|EREHEENER
AR BREBARTEEMKEE L TR  #E
SREBMTEE - S HFRBEAMS - BRARN
2EBEZREBERBMEH - B#EBEALTBEE
i [ETEMEFBREINHEE » A [KENF
AR ISHARENBREREEHENE - £
EXEBL—EHEHE -

EMEEEREACEXROHERAH
—E-N\FEH

5



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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On the other hand, we emphasized on the research and development
of new drugs. We cooperated with a number of pharmaceutical
universities, research institutes and a number of experts in the field
of drug research and development and scholars and increased
investment in developing technologically advanced new drugs, with
independent intellectual property rights.

Moreover, we have strictly followed the management regulations
of the new version of Good Manufacturing Practice, established
a rigorous quality control system, applied quality concepts to
production management, and enhanced our efforts in quality control
throughout the production process. In connection with company’s
strategic development plan, we strictly implemented production
management, enhanced quality, reduced costs, increased efficiency,
S0 as to guarantee the supply of goods against rapid growth in sales.

The Group acknowledges the importance of environmental, social and
corporate governance as key elements in enhancing shareholders’
value. Thus it is dedicated to improving its policies in compliance
with the respective regulatory requirements and in accordance
with internationally recommended practices. To achieve this aim,
the Group has continuously reviewed its resources, strengthened
internal training and sought professional advice from experts so as to
safeguard interests of the Group and the Company’s shareholders as
a whole.

Looking ahead, we will continue to adhere to our business philosophy,
that is, “focusing on technological innovation and serving the public
and endeavoring in the pursuit of health for people around the world”.
We will strive to become globalized and contribute to the healthiness
of the people around the world as the endeavor and pursuit of
“Changlong people”. Our ultimate goal is to achieve rapid growth for
“New Changlong”.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks
to all levels of staff and the management for their efforts and
contributions in 2018 and my deep gratitude to our clients, business
partners and owners for their utmost support.

By order of the Board
Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, PRC
29 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s revenue
increased to RMB647,672,000 from approximately RMB645,303,000
while the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
increased to RMB161,216,000 from RMB144,402,000. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, basic earnings per share increased to
RMB28.78 cents from RMB25.77 cents last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the manufacturing and sales of
Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (R & = B %) continued to be the Group’s
core source of revenue.

OPERATION REVIEW

Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has already
obtained GMP certificates for the following:

1.  Tablets — valid until 28 January 2021

2.  Capsules — valid until 28 January 2021
3.  Bulk Drug (Gardema Extract) — valid until 28 January 2021
4. Membrane (Including Chinese Medicine Pretreatment &

Extraction) — valid until 28 January 2021

5.  Pills (Condensate) (Including Chinese Medicine Pretreatment &
Extraction) — valid until 12 February 2020

6. Bulk Drug (Fucoidan) — valid until 12 February 2020

7.  Powder for Injection (Cephalosporins) — valid until 30 January
2024

8.  Lyophilized Powder for Injection — valid until 30 January 2024

9.  Small Volume Parenteral Solutions — valid until 30 January 2024

10. API (Edaravone) — valid until 30 January 2024

11. Solution (External Use) — valid until 28 August 2022

12. Granules and Pills (Water Pills) — valid until 28 August 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Research and Development (R&D) department is essential for the
future success of a pharmaceutical company. In the past, our R&D
department had successfully developed the medicine, Compound
Huonaoshu capsule, which had generated huge profit to the Group
and finally led to the listing of the Company in Hong Kong. In the year
of 2003, our R&D department completed the development of Hai Kun
Shen Xi capsule, which has now become the largest contributor of
revenue and its revenue reached our target level.

PRODUCTION FACILITIES

During the year, the purchase and setting up of equipment and testing
works of HEMERERMEF B RE LA R, a wholly-owned subsidiary,
have completed and the accreditation of food production has passed
and we launched the product of Changbai Mountain wild walnuts
milk. With the continued development of pharmaceutical healthcare
field, Changlong Bio-pharmacy improve pharmaceutical research
and development continuously while investing in research and
development of food and healthcare field in order to provide better
service to our people and benefit human kind, providing a new profit
driver for the enhancement of the Group’s result.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s recorded
revenue amounted to approximately RMB647,672,000 (2017:
RMB645,303,000), an increase of approximately 0.4% as compared
with the figure of the previous year. The audited profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB161,216,000, representing an increase of 11.6% as compared
with RMB144,402,000 of the previous year. The basic earnings
per share amounted to RMB28.78 cents (2017: RMB25.77 cents),
representing an increase of RMB3.01 cents over the previous year.

The Board of Directors is pleased with the financial performance in
2018. It is believed that the maintenance of profitability is attributed to
the following reasons:

Firstly, we emphasized on sales and distribution and achieved
breakthrough with the rapid growth of sales of our dominant products,
thereby reaching our sales target.

Secondly, we have followed the management regulations of the new
version Good Manufacturing Practice, attached great importance to
staff training and strengthened the production management in 2018,
thereby bolstering the growth and development of the Group.

Thirdly, we continued to strengthen academic promotion, enhance
our understanding of clinical performance of various medicines and
explore the unique value of our products while proactively organizing
and participating in academic conferences in relation to nephrology at
national level.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Fourthly, we further strengthened our efforts on integrating market
resources, encouraged reasonable mobility of personnel, unified the
price of products supplied and regulated sales practices. Focusing
on enhancing clinical sales, efforts were made in various areas, such
as soliciting business from the medicine departments of hospitals, in
order to identify new profit drivers.

Fifthly, we continue to strengthen the buildup of our sales teams, fill
up market gaps, and link staff recruitment and filling up market gaps
together with leadership responsibility system, increase the efforts
in developing new products and lay a solid foundation for better
corporate development.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
approximately 82.2%, representing a 0.1% decrease as compared
with that of 82.3% for the year ended 31 December 2017.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded other
income and gains of approximately RMB58,188,000, contrasting to a
figure of RMB24,008,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Distribution and selling costs increased to approximately
RMB375,480,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 from
approximately RMB335,128,000 in last year. These expenses
accounted for 57.97% of revenue in 2018, which represented a
6.04% increase from 51.93% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, administrative expenses
decreased to approximately RMB28,450,000 from approximately
RMB47,165,000 last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has maintained a sound financial position during this
year. As at 31 December 2018, cash and bank balances of the
Group amounted to RMB158,340,000 (2017: RMB110,428,000) with
total borrowings of RMB2,350,000 (2017: RMB2,970,000) which
were interest bearing at commercial rates and unsecured. As at 31
December 2018, the Group had total assets of RMB1,554,841,000
(2017: RMB1,238,072,000) which were financed by current
liabilities of RMB375,484,000 (2017: RMB200,083,000), long term
borrowings of RMB1,100,000 (2017: RMB1,637,000), deferred tax
liabilities of RMB52,000 (2017: RMB Nil) and shareholders’ equity of
RMB1,133,025,000 (2017: RMB1,011,027,000).
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a net cash and cash
equivalents of RMB158,340,000. As at 31 December 2018, the
ratio of the total liabilities to the total assets of the Group was 27%
(2017: 18%) which was calculated by dividing the Group’s total
liabilities of RMB421,816,000 (2017: RMB227,045,000) by the
Group’s total equity and liabilities of RMB1,554,841,000 (2017:
RMB1,238,072,000). The Group’s gearing ratio which derived from
the total borrowings to total net assets was 0.2% (2017: 0.3%).

EMPLOYEES

The Group has a total of 870 full-time employees and has employed
some temporary sales persons.

Remuneration is determined by reference to market conditions
and the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance
will be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contribution. Other benefits include contributions to retirement
scheme and medical scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment.
The Group understands a better future depends on everyone’s
participation and contribution. It has encouraged employees,
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a
whole.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees, has enhanced
cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality products and
services to its customers so as to ensure sustainable development.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT,

EEREREEEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Hong

Aged 64, male, is the Chairman and secretary of the Party committee.
He holds a bachelor degree and is a senior economist. His previous
positions are as follows: He was a teacher and the secretary of Youth
League Committee of Huinan No. 4 Middle School from September
1978 to October 1983; he worked in county and town governments
from November 1983 to September 1989, during which he held
the position of deputy town head; he has been the Chairman, and
secretary of the Party committee of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong
Bio-pharmacy Company Limited since October 1989.

Mr. Zhang Hong is the father of Mr. Zhang Yi, our executive director.

Zhang Xiao Guang

Aged 55, male, is an executive director and general manager. He
holds a bachelor degree and is a senior economist. He held the
positions of the secretary of Youth League Committee of Chaoyang
town engineer affairs equipment factory of Shenyang railway bureau
from July 1983 to September 1989; deputy director of foreign trade
bureau of Huinan County from October 1989 to November 1990;
executive director and deputy general manager of the Company since
December 1990; appointed as general manager since January 2015.

Zhao Bao Gang

Aged 52, male, is an executive director and chief finance officer.
He holds a bachelor degree and is senior accountant a certified
accountant and certified estimator. From August 1990 to May 1995,
he acted as director of Finance Bureau of Huinan County; from
June 1995 to February 2007, he held the position of director and
equipment executive director and finance officer of Jilin Province
Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and was
appointed as executive director and chief finance officer of the
Company since March 2007.

Wu Guo Wen

Aged 54, male, is an executive director and deputy sale director.
He holds a master degree and senior engineer. From September
1988 to August 1991, he studied in Shanghai Medicine University;
from February 1993 to May 1996, he pursued master degree in
Jilin University; from June 1996 to August 2007, he acted as chief
engineer of Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company and was
appointed as executive director and chief engineer on 9 August 2007;
appointed as deputy sale director of part of east China since 2010.
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Zhang Yi

Aged 38, male is an executive director and executive deputy general
manager, held a Master’s degree. He attended combined Bachelor’s
and Master’s degree programs in the clinical department of Jilin
University for seven years from September 2000 to July 2007. He
studied in the First Hospital of Jilin University from 2007 to 2008
and took up IMBA courses in Beijing Jiaotong University from 2009
to 2011. From 2011 to 2014, he worked as the General Manager
in Changchun Changyuan Pharmaceutical Industry. He has been
working in Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmancy Company
Limited as executive deputy general manager.

Mr. Zhang Yi is son of Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman and executive
director of the Company.

Xu Xiang Fu

Aged 49, male, held a tertiary qualification. He graduated from the
School of Medicine in Jilin, specializing in medicine, and is a senior
engineer. He has been working for Changlong Pharmacy since
1992 and is currently the Deputy Technical General Manager of
the Company. In 2015, he was awarded two patents for inventing
the“Methodology for Retrieving Fucoidan”and “A Methodology
for Retrieving Fucoidan”. In 2016, he participated in the project
of development and application in Haikun Shenxi Capsule and
was awarded the second-tier prize in Jilin Province Science and
Technology Award.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Gao Yong Cai

Aged 63, male, Mr. Gao is a Chinese Certified Public Accountant. He
has over 30 years of experience in audit and accounting services. He
is currently serving as a partner of the Huinan Jin Shi Joint Certified
Public Accountant (¥£f & B A& S5HEIEI5FT). Prior to this, he was
a partner of Huinan County Audit Firm (B &EHEIE4AT). He
worked at the Resources Bureau of Huinan County (%% E B)
from 1974 to 1994.
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Gao Qi Pin

Aged 67,male, He is currently the Professor and Lecturer for Doctoral
students in the research and development centre of Changchun
University of Chinese Medicine. He graduated from Shenyang
Pharmaceutical University with a Master’s degree in 1982. He was the
Deputy Dean and researcher of the provincial Academy of Sciences
for Chinese Traditional Medicine from 1982 to 1998, during which
he had been working in Kitasato Institute Hospital in Japan for two
years and obtained the Doctoral degree after working in the University
of Tromsg in Norway for more than four years. He was the Head
of Jilin Provincial Institute for Drug Control and Secretary of party
committee from 1998 to 2006. And he is now the Professor and
Lecturer for Doctoral students of Changchun College of Traditional
Chinese Medicine, the Officer of Key Laboratory of Chinese Medicine
Macromolecules in Jilin Province and the Officer of Key Research
Centre for Active Components of Chinese Medicines in the Ministry
of Education. He was the committee member of the eighth, ninth and
tenth Chinese Pharmacopoeia Commission; the National New Drug
Appraisal Expert; Science Advancement Award Appraisal Expert
from the Ministry of Science, the Honoured President of provincial
medicine society, senior associate expert from Jilin Province and the
winner of special allowance from the State Council. He was once the
person in charge for more than 20 national, provincial and divisional
projects. He was involved in the research and development for three
new medicines (Infantile spleen-strengthening oral solution (/]\ 52 fi& j&
O Az &), Colon Recovery Capsule (455 FE B %), Ginseng Glycopeptide
Injection (A2#EMCESTR)), and initiated around 100 enhancements
of standard revision for medicines, which have been implemented
by our provincial enterprises. He possessed five invention patents
As the first awardee, he won one top-tier provincial and divisional
prize, three second-tier prizes and a number of participant prizes.
He has reached a leading international level with certification on
the research studies of the structural effect and relationship among
ginseng polysaccharide, tremella polysaccharide, polysaccharide and
microsphere connectors. He was ranked the Outstanding Communist
Party model of the Work Committee for Organs Under Direct
Supervision for twice. His study background and working experience
are as follows: educated youth in remote villages (November 1968 to
August 1973); the student of the medicine department of Shenyang
Medical College (August 1973 to October 1976); the pharmacist
of the Jilin Provincial Institute (Baicheng District) for Drug Control
(October 1976 to October 1980); the Master’s degree postgraduate
of Shenyang Medical College (October 1980 to December 1982); the
Research Assistant, Research Associate, Researcher, Deputy Head,
Head, Deputy Dean of School of Research of Chinese Medicines of
the Jilin Province (December 1982 to March 1998), and among which:
the Research Assistant of Kitasato Institute Hospital in Japan (August
1986 to August 1988); the Doctoral Postgraduate, Senior Visiting
Scholar and Guest Researcher in the University of Tromse in Norway
(October 1993 to March 1998); the Senior Pharmacist and Head
of Jilin Provincial Institute for Drug Control and Secretary of party
committee (March 1998 to March 2006); the Professor and Officer
of the research and development centre of Changchun University of
Chinese Medicine (March 2006 until now).
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Tian Jie

Aged 47, female, holds a bachelor’s degree. Ms. Tian has been
working at Jilin Huifa Law Firm (F#M& B2 2 E 4 F7) since March
1993 and has over 20 years of experience in legal matters. She is
currently serving as the director of Jilin Huifa Law Firm.

SUPERVISORS

Yan Li Yu

Aged 48, male,held a tertiary qualification. He has been working
in Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmancy Company
Limited since 1989 and is now the Superintendent of sales division
of Changlong Pharmacy. He worked in the material division of
Changlong Pharmcy from 1989 to 1994. He worked in the marketing
and sales division of Changlong Pharmcy from 1994 to 1996. He
worked in the material division of Changlong Pharmcy from 1996 to
2007. From 2007 until now, he has been working in the sales division
of Changlong Pharmacy.

Qiao Xiao Chun

Aged 43, female, held a tertiary qualification. She has been working
in Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmancy Company Limited
since 1994 and is now the Workshop Officer of the solid pharmacy
workshop of Changlong Pharmacy. She worked as a supporting
staff for Changlong Pharmcy from July 1994 to January 1997. She
was the Sales Manager stationed in Tianjin for Changlong Pharmacy
from 1997 to 2003. She assumed the position of Superintendent of
quality control division of Changlong Pharmacy from 2003 to 2012.
Between 2012 and 2014, she was the Merchandiser of production
supplies division of Changlong Pharmacy. She was the Deputy Head
of production management division of Changlong Pharmacy from
2014 to 2016. From 2017 until now, she is the Workshop Officer of
the solid pharmacy workshop of Changlong Pharmacy.

Wang Ying Xu

Aged 35, male, holds an associate degree. He worked in Jilin
Huatai Certified Public Accountants (F#M& EZHRETAISEEAT) from
September 2006 to December 2006. Since 2007, he has been
working in Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company
Limited and now serves as officer in finance department of the
Company.

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mok Sai Cheong Mark

Aged 38, male, is the qualified accountant and company secretary.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 14
years of experience in auditing and accounting.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEREE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29 December
1995, under the relevant provisions of the PRC Company Law, the
Company was re-organised from a state-owned enterprise to a
limited liability company. On 16 August 1996, with the approval of the
Economic Restructuring Commission of Jilin Province, the Company
was further converted into a joint stock limited company. On 20
April 1999, the Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of
retained profits at the proportion of one bonus share for every two
existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 May 2001.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution
of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in the PRC
under the brand names of Changlong and Qing Tong. There were no
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

Business review of the Group is set out in the paragraph headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group has only one business segment which is the manufacture
and distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in
the PRC. In 2018, revenue of the Group was generated entirely from
sales in the PRC and all identifiable assets of the Group are located
in the PRC. Accordingly, no business or geographical segmental
analysis is prepared for the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 47 to 124.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESEHEE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION R ERBE
The following is a summary of the published results and the assets WUTAREBERAGEBULREER BEZH
and liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in the notes = « T3 N XM s EERE  APFERBL

below. This summary is not part of the audited financial statements. BB RERZ D -
Results ES
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBETT

Revenue PN 647,672 645,303
Profit before income tax M P15 %4 il A 186,323 172,768
Income tax expense Frig®isz it (25,107) (28,366)

Profit for the year from ordinary activities ~— AFEEARRQ BIREIFH AFE(L

attributable to owners of the Company HEEBKaH 161,216 144,402
Assets and liabilities BEREE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Total assets BEE 1,554,841 1,238,072
Total liabilities BEE (421,816) (227,045)
Net assets BEFE 1,133,025 1,011,027
BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS, PROPERTY, AL BEMEE WX - - BENME
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE HBUREBREE

ASSETS

Details of movements in bearer biological assets, property, plant and  RER - KAEBTLLEYEE  WE  BEL
equipment, and intangible assets of the Group during the year are set  REUANEREE 2 EFEE D BIE RIS HRE
out in Notes 16, 17 and 21 to the financial statements respectively. MFE16 ~ 1721

16 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ESEHEE

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

The Group made no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies during the year ended 31 December 2018.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no other future plans
for material investments or significant changes in capital assets of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 20
to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 29 to the
financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The operations of the Group were financed mainly by shareholders’
equity. The Group will continue to adopt its treasury policy of placing
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents in interest bearing deposits,
and to fund operations with internal resources.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 32 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and in Note 33 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2018, the reserves of the Company available
for cash distribution or distribution in specie was amounted to
approximately RMB993,808,000 (2017: RMB870,828,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group sold about 15% of its goods to its five
largest customers (2017: 22%) and sales to the largest customer
included therein accounted for 6% (2017: 8%) of the Group’s total
sales.

In the year under review, the Group’s purchases from the five largest
suppliers accounted for about 48% (2017: 42%) of the Group’s
total purchases and purchases from the largest suppliers therein
accounted for 22% (2017: 15%) of the Group’s total purchases.
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EEEREE

None of the directors of the Company or any shareholders who, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and five largest suppliers noted above.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group mainly
generated revenue and incurred costs in Renminbi. The directors
consider the impact on foreign exchange exposure of the Group
is minimal. Accordingly the Group did not employ any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December
2018 are set out in Note 34 to the financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhang Yi (Appointed on 8 June 2018)
Mr. Xu Xiang Fu (Appointed on 8 June 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gao Yong Cai

Ms. Tian Jie

Mr. Gao Qi Pin (Appointed on 8 June 2018)
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping (Resigned on 24 April 2018)

Supervisors

Mr. Zhao Gang (Resigned on 24 June 2018)

Mr. Wu Wei Men (Resigned on 24 June 2018)
Mr. Wang Ying Xu

Mr. Yan Li Yu (Appointed on 6 June 2018)

Ms. Qiao Xiao Chun (Appointed on 6 June 2018)

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out in the section “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of the annual report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Listed below are the names of all the Directors who have served on
the boards of the Group’s subsidiaries during the year and up to the
date of this Report:

Zhang Hong
Zhang Xiao Guang
Zhao Bao Gang
Wu Guo Wen
Zhang Yi

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ and Supervisors’ emoluments and those of

the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 14 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS OR LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the Directors and Supervisors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors and the Supervisors) has entered into a
service contract or letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years. None of the Directors or the Supervisors had entered
into any service contract or letter of appointment with the Company
which is not terminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

No directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this directors’
report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity provisions being in
force for the benefit of any of the directors of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES

At 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the minimum standards of dealing by directors as referred to in
Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) were as
follows:

BERFREEX

RO BFERBEAE SR REE A HLIEE
R B G A SR A A (A A AR A RIS A
HEARZEERTHAZEEFREEETE
3 o

EEREERAROMESR

RZZB—N\E+-A=+—8 ARFREE =
ERTETHAERARRREBESEE(EE
REBESRHEEN([EHRBEE])EXVEE)
Mk - HERG RESFTHEEREEFRSE
BB 3521% » A AZIGFT i B e &
KB HIREE X TGEMIE & LT R 8 ([ GEM
EHREI)F54616E567TIKFIEEEES R
RAZEMAME A QT MBS AR
T

Long positions in shares REBRHBHERR

Percentage of

total registered

Type of Number of Percentage of Share Capital

Director Interests Capacity Domestic Shares Domestic Shares 1 48 33 1 B AR

S R 5 14 RERBE MHARERBESL MBS

Zhang Hong Personal Beneficial owner 101,937,000 26.29 18.19
5K 5h & A EnlAA

Zhang Xiao Guang Personal Beneficial owner 42,315,000 10.91 7.55
RBE & A EnlAA

Wu Guo Wen Personal Beneficial owner 900,000 0.232 0.161
REIX EA EREAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, none of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company has
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standards of dealing by directors as referred to in Rule 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Saved as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and supervisors’
interests in shares” above, at no time during the year were there any
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any director, supervisor
and chief executive or their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors, supervisors and chief
executives to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons (other than the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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Long positions in Domestic shares RREBRHER
Percentage of
Capacity/ Number of Percentage of total registered
Name of shareholder Nature of Interest Domestic Shares Domestic Shares Share Capital
G AR AR A
REEH B HBME RERBE MHARERBESL MBS
Huinan County SAB (Note) Beneficial owner 81,975,000 21.14 14.63

BESTRIREGREEAR(MZE) BEZEBA

Note: Apart from the equity interest in the Company, Huinan County SAB does not have
any direct or indirect interest in the Company, including representatives in the
Board of Directors.

Long positions in H shares

HtaE : BRAMEARRARIMR ARSI  BREMRIREBRET
ARWEEEARNARNE M EEEEERS  BIEEE
EFERHREK -

RHEBEHWERAR

Percentage of

Number of Percentage of total registered

Name of shareholder Capacity H Shares H Shares Share Capital

b 4B ST AR A

RERERE 514 HEREE EHRBEZ L WEZ L

Chen Jingwei Beneficial owner 29,520,000 17.11 5.269
PR IZ EmEAA

Shen Qianzhen Beneficial owner 13,996,000 8.11 2.498

LEY EaEAA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executives of the Company) who had interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group and the
Company were entered into or were in existence during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders, the significant
shareholders or the substantial shareholders (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) of the Company had any interest in a business, which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the article
of association of the Company or the laws of the PRC, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was established, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had no material related party transactions,
which constituted connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Group and the employer’s
staff retirement costs charged to the profit and loss account for the
year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an Audit Committee on 24 May 2001 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and provide supervision
over the financial reporting procedures and internal control system of
the Group.
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The committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters, including a review of the
audited results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out
on page 124 of the annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 24 to 31 of the annual report.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to Annual General Meeting of the
Company to re-appoint the auditors, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK)
CPA Limited.

By order of the Board

Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, PRC
29 March 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieve high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interest of its shareholders and enhance
its corporate value. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied
with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less than the required standard
of dealings as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has also made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors throughout the year ended 31 December
2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)

Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhang Yi (Appointed on 8 June 2018)
Mr. Xu Xiang Fu (Appointed on 8 June 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gao Yong Cai

Ms. Tian Jie

Mr. Gao Qi Pin (Appointed on 8 June 2018)
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping (Resigned on 24 April 2018)

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised nine Directors, six
of whom are Executive Directors, three of whom are INEDs of the
Company. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director
are set out on the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and interim
results, succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transactions, and other significant operational
and financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board of Directors to the management include the
preparation of annual and interim accounts for Board approval before
public reporting, execution of business strategies, implementation
of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management
procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and
rules and regulations. Executive Directors are responsible for running
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The
INEDs serve the relevant function of bringing independent judgement
on the development, performance and risk management of the Group
through their contributions in board meeting.

All Directors have been given sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience
to hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and
efficiently.

The Board considers that each INED of the Company is independent
in character and judgement. The Company has received from each
INED a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Board papers are circulated not
less than 7 days before the Board meetings to enable the Directors
to make informed decisions on matters to be raised at the board
meetings. Minutes of board meetings are kept be the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, save as the family relationship
disclosed in the biographical details of directors and senior
management set out on pages 11 to 14 of this annual report, there is
no financial, business and family relationship among the members of
the Board.
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Board meetings
During the year, five regular board meetings were held. Details of the
attendance of the Directors are as follows:

Exeel
R ERTIASAERGEH - EFRLE
T

Meetings attended/Held

Directors BE BHE BETEER
Executive Directors BITESE
Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman) RO A (FE) (6/6)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SR SR (6/6)
Mr. Zhao Bao Gang HEM LA (6/6)
Mr. Wu Guo Wen REXGEE (6/6)
Mr. Zhang Yi (Appointed on 8 June 2018) RERLA (ZE—NFANH

BEE) (2/6)
Mr. Xu Xiang Fu (Appointed on 8 June 2018) ‘rEXEE (ZE—NFANH

BEE) (2/6)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUMITES
Mr. Gao Yong Cai mAKA A (6/6)
Ms. Tian Jie M2+ (6/6)
Mr. Gao Qi Pin (Appointed on 8 June 2018) SEMEE(ZE-NFRANB

BZE) (2/6)
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping (Resigned on 24 April 2018) BEFZt(ZE—\FMHA

—+IMHEHT) (4/6)

Apart from the above regular board meetings of the years, the Board
of Directors will meet on other occasions when a board-level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors will receive details
of agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each board meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Hong assumes the role of both
the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. The
Board is of the view that this has not compromised accountability and
independent decision making for the following reasons:

- the Audit Committee composes exclusively of Independent
Non-executive Directors;

- the Independent Directors have free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditors and independent professional
advice when considered necessary.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman, is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and has considerable industry experience. He is motivated
to contribute to the growth and profitability of the Group. The Board
is of the view that it is in the best interests of the Group to have
an executive chairman so that the Board can have the benefit of a
chairman who is knowledgeable about the business of the Group
and is most capable to guide discussions and brief the Board in a
timely manner on pertinent issues and developments to facilitate open
dialogue between the Board and the management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company appointed INEDs who have appropriate and sufficient
experience and qualification to carry out their duties so as to protect
the interests of shareholders. Mr. Gao Yong Cai, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and
Ms. Tian Jie are the INEDs.

All INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. All the existing INEDs
are appointed for an initial term of three years and the term of office
shall continue after the expiration of the initial term until at least 1
month’s prior written notice is given by either party or the Company to
terminate the same.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Every Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on appointment and they are continually updated on developments
in the statutory and regulatory regime, and the business and
market changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities
and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

To ensure that all Directors’ contribution into the Board remain
informed and relevant, they have participated in continuous
professional development for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skill. During the year under
review, the Company has provided updates and coordinated training
on the GEM Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements to the
Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company has set up a Remuneration
Committee on 29 September 2005. As at the date of this report, the
chairman of the committee is Mr. Gao Yong Cai, an INED, and other
members include Ms. Tian Jie, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and Mr. Zhang Hong.
The remuneration committee schedules meet at least once a year and
the quorum necessary for the transaction of business is two.
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The role and function of the Remuneration Committee included the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment, and make recommendations to
the board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The
remuneration committee should consider factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee held two meeting. The individual attendance records of
each member are as follows:

SNEEe AN BREEMAEINTES

ZEEFHFNES  BREVNE RRSRAEE
NR(BREEREIKEREFRUKZERENZ
EABE) ARAEETERIFNTESE ZFH IR
HER - FHNEEEREESERR  flArTky
BRRRXfe#e  EFRBEZHRARET &
SEEMMTT 2 BRGRERIRRREEHFMN 27
HRE -

REBE-Z-/\F+_A=+t—HIHBFE
HFNEZESRTTMREEH - BKEZERIHE
FLERINT

Meetings attended/Held

Members RE DHE BETeE
Mr. Gao Yong Cai SKA A 2/2
Ms. Tian Jie EEWﬁi 2/2
Mr. Gao Qi Pin (Appointed SEREE(ZE-NFXANBEZT)

on 8 June 2018) (1/2)
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping (Resigned BE ¥zt (ZE— N \FMUA=+IEA

on 24 April 2018) BHT) (1/2)
Mr. Zhang Hong FRoh Tt 2/2
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration Committee REZE-T—N\F+-A=+—HI-FE - ZH
reviewed matters relating to remuneration for the Directors and ZEG@FERTHEELSHERASFHMIEMSE
members of senior management, and discussed the remuneration  H - W) T ARSEE 2 HMBOR

policy of the Group.

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered and
reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of the Executive
Directors and appointment letters of the INEDs. The Remuneration
Committee of the Company considers that the existing terms of
employment contracts of the Executive Directors and appointment
letters of the INEDs are fair and reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee according
to the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities include reviewing and
supervising the framework, number of members and composition
of the Board and making proposals to the Board in respect of
any changes and identifying and nominating suitable persons for
appointment of Director.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises of
one Executive Director, Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang and three INEDs, Mr.
Gao Yong Cai, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and Ms. Tian Jie, Mr. Gao Yong Cai is
the chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement
of qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee, and review
and approval of such nominations by the Board. The Nomination
Committee will evaluate potential candidates considering factors such
as professional expertise, relevant experience, personal ethics and
integrity.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings. During the meeting, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed and discussed the framework, number
of members and composition of the Board. Also, the Nomination
Committee has identified and made proposals in respect of the
outstanding appointment of Executive Directors and INEDs. The
individual attendance records of each member are as follows:
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Meetings attended/Held

Members 24= EHE CETEE
Mr. Gao Yong Cai RIKA S 2/2
Ms. Tian Jie At 2/2
Mr. Gao Qi Pin (Appointed SEREE(ZE-NFEXANBEZT)

on 8 June 2018) (1/2)
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping (Resigned BEHLZ+H(ZE—N\FOA=-+MH

on 24 April 2018) BHE) (172)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang RN A 2/2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and currently
comprises three members, Mr. Gao Yong Cai, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and Ms.
Tian Jie. All of them are INEDs. The chairman of the Audit Committee
is Mr. Gao Yong Cai. The Board considers that each Audit Committee
has broad commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of
expertise in business, legal, accounting and financial management in
the Audit Committee.

None of the members of the Audit Committee has any personal
financial interests, conflicts of interests arising from cross-
directorships or day-to-day involvement in the running of the
business. The Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting
process and the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal control. During the year, the Audit Committee
carried out their own independent review of the interim and annual
financial statements and financial reports and statements included
in circulars of the Company published during the year. And with the
assistance of the internal audit department, which reports directly
to the committee, the Audit Committee completed its review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal
control and reported its findings and recommendations to the Board.
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The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review.
Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as
follows:

=

2 =

ERZEENEEFTEALBITOREHE « BX
ES SR

ZBEFHBWT

Meetings attended/Held

Members RE BHE BETEE
Mr. Gao Yong Cai KA 4/4
Ms. Tian Jie At 4/4
Mr. Gao Qi Pin (Appointed SEREE(ZE-—NFEXANBEZT)

on 8 June 2018) (2/4)
Ms. Qiu Fang Ping (Resigned BFEFLZ+H(ZE—N\FOA=-+MH

on 24 April 2018) BHE) (2/4)

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and annual
audited results during the year ended 31 December 2018 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results were complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure
have been made.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited was the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018. Other than annual
auditing services, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited did not
provide non-auditing services to the Company or any of the Group’s
companies during the year.

Auditor’s remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set
out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have the responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and shall ensure that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Company, Reanda Lau
& Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, about its reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 38 to 46 of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

In 2018, the Company Secretary took the relevant professional
training of 15 hours relating to general corporate governance issues.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group has a sound
and effective internal control system. The Group is committed to
the identification, monitoring and management of risks associated
with its business activities and has implemented a practical and
effective control system which includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority, a sound cash management system
and periodic review of the Group’s operation and performance by
the Audit Committee and the Board. The internal control system is
reviewed on an ongoing basis by the Board to ensure it is effective.
The Board is satisfied that, based on information furnished to it and
on its own observations, the present internal controls of the Group
are satisfactory. The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control and is of the view that the system of
internal control adopted for the year is sound and effective. The Group
does not maintain its own internal audit team for cost-saving reason
but the work is shared between related parties in the company to
assist the Audit Committee to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders
in compliance with GEM Listing Rules. Extensive information about
the Company’s activities is provided in the Annual Report and the
Interim Report which are sent to shareholders. There is regular
dialogue with institutional investors. Enquiries from individuals on
matters relating to their shareholdings and the business of the
Company are welcomed and are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner.

All shareholders have 45 days’ notice of the Annual General
Meeting at which all directors and Committee chairs are available
for questions. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual
General Meeting.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take necessary actions
to ensure compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liability)

During the year ended 31 December 2018, in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC, the requirements of the relevant laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and the articles of association of the
Company (the “relevant rules and regulations”), the Supervisory
Committee of the Company exercised conscientiously its authority,
safeguarded the interests of the shareholders of the Company and
the Company, and followed the principle of honesty and integrity and
worked cautiously and diligently.

During the year, we provided reasonable suggestions and advice on
the operations and development plans to the Directors and strictly
and effectively monitored whether the policies of the Company had
conformed with the relevant rules and regulations or safeguarded the
interests of the shareholders of the Company.

After investigation, we consider that the audited financial statements
of the Company give a true and fair picture of the operating results
and asset position of the Company. We also consider that the Report
of the Directors and the profit distribution proposal meet the relevant
rules and regulations. We have attended the meeting of the Board.
We are of the opinion that the meeting was convened in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations. We consider that the members
of the Board, the general manager and other senior management
of the Company have strictly complied with the principle of honesty
and trustworthiness, worked diligently and sincerely exercised their
authority to the best interests of the Company. None of the Directors,
general manager nor other senior management of the Company have
abused their powers, caused damage to the interests of the Company
and infringed upon the interests of the Company shareholders and its
staff, nor have they violated the relevant rules and regulations.

We are satisfied with the various accomplishments and the cost-
effectiveness of the Company. We are confident that the Company will
have a good prospect of future development.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

Qiao Xiao Chun
Chairman

Jilin Province, PRC
29 March 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has complied with
the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 20 to the
GEM Listing Rules and the relevant information is set out below.

A. ENVIRONMENT

1. Emissions

The major raw materials used by the Group in production
are various kinds of Chinese herbal medicines and their
production and operation may have a minor effect on the
environment and the natural resources. The Group actively
fulfils its social responsibilities, always adheres to the
concept that development and environmental protection
are equally important and makes rational use of various
resources to protect the environment. The Company
strictly complies with the provisions of the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China so as
to achieve saving energy and consumption reduction,
lowering discharges and improving efficiency, and try
our best to minimize the impact that the production and
operation process have on the ecosystem.

2. Use of resources

The Group also advocates the concept of green
production so as to achieve the target of energy saving,
consumption lowering and discharge reduction. The
Company saved various kinds of resources by optimising
the technological process, enhancing the technology
standard, using LED energy-saving lighting and cutting
down water consumption during the production process.
Moreover, with respect to the protection and recycling of
water resources, the Company adopted a recycle system
throughout the production process so as to reduce the
amount of water resources used.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s
consumption in electricity, coal and water were:

Electricity: 3,893,066 kWh

Coal: 10,086 Tonnes
Water: 75,959 Tonnes
3. Environment and natural resources

The Group pursues the best practice between the
development and the environment, and takes into careful
consideration of all the aspects and activities within the
value chain to mitigate the impact on the environment. To
achieve the sustainable development of the environment,
the Group regularly provides environmental protection
information and practical advice related to environmentally
friendly living style to staff for circulation.
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B.

SOCIETY

Employment and labor practices

1.

Employment

Employees are regarded as the greatest and most valuable
assets and core competitive advantages of the Group
who continuously provide the source of innovation for the
Group. The Group offers competitive remuneration and
welfare, and implements comprehensive performance
appraisal scheme to award and praise the staff with
excellent performance and assists them with their career
development and promotion within the Group by providing
appropriate trainings and opportunities. Meanwhile, in
order to create a favorable and fair working environment
for employees and protect their physical and psychological
health, the Group will give careful consideration to all the
valuable suggestions for improving the working efficiency
and harmonizing the working atmosphere proposed by
employees, thereby establishing a united, harmonious and
professional team for the Group.

The Group strictly complied with the regulations and
provisions of laws in the PRC and Hong Kong, formulated
and strictly implemented the relevant management system
and measures, and expressly specified the employment,
labor relations, treatment, promotion, benefits and
retirement of the staff to safeguard their interests.

The Group strictly complied with the PRC laws and
regulations and policies associated with social insurance,
and made full contributions to various social insurance and
housing provident fund for all the staff in a timely manner.

Health and safety

Employees are the most important wealth and resources of
the Group, therefore, the health and safety of employees
are always the top priority of the Company. The Company
is committed to protecting the employees with production
safety while endeavour to protect and care about their
healthy and to provide a safe, healthy and protected
workplace.

The Group established a comprehensive management
system in occupational health and safety, strictly complied
with the regulations of occupational health and safety
in mainland China and Hong Kong, and laid a solid
foundation for safe operation. As at 31 December 2018,
the Group did not experience any significant safety
accident during the operation.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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Development and training

The Group adopts the principle of unified management
and stratified training for the education and training of
its staff. Upon joining the Company, new employees
must participate in pre-service training focusing on the
Company’s corporate culture, corporate policies and
goals, production safety, necessary skills, etc. A series
of tailor-made training courses are provided to senior
management and middle management on anti-corruption
practices for leaders as well as trainings for middle and
senior management of listed companies. The Company
will evaluate the training effects subsequently, so as to
enhance the pertinence and effectiveness of training,
which will further enhance the technical skills and
professional quality of the Company’s employees of each
level achieving satisfactory results.

Labour standards

There is a clear requirement on the age of applicants in the
recruitment management system of the Group. The Group
will review and check the identification information of
applicants during the recruitment process and absolutely
no child labor will be employed. Applicants should provide
documents of educational background and working
experience for our verification when they report to work.
Any suspected applicants providing false documents of
educational background and working experience will not
be employed. The Group strives to create a safe, healthy
and comfortable working environment for the employees,
and provide labor protection, reasonable remuneration
and various benefits to the employees. The Group enters
into an employment contract with each of the employees
in accordance with relevant regulations in the PRC and in
Hong Kong, and forbids any kind of forced labor.

Operational practices

58

Supply chain management

Supply chain management is always one of the key links
in the Company’s quality control system. The Company
focuses on the risk management of product quality and
keeps a close eye on signals of quality and safety crisis
of its medicines. Attaching great importance to product
compliance, the Company organizes self-inspections and
rectifications in a timely manner to ensure product quality.
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To ensure the quality of the purchased raw materials,
auxiliary ingredients and packaging materials, the
Company has established a supplier management
system in strict compliance with the Law of the PRC
on the Administration of Pharmaceuticals, GMP, and
other relevant laws and regulations. A standardised
management system is implemented on the procurement
of materials under a comparatively well-established
management system.

The Company also carries out long-term quality monitoring
and regular reviews on all suppliers. In case of a significant
change in supplier qualification or serious quality issue
occurs, the Company may suspend the delivery of the
supplier in question immediately to ensure the quality of
the medicine of the Company.

Product responsibility

The Company is committed to ensuring product safety.
Especially, as most of our products are pharmaceuticals,
product quality and safety are undoubtedly the top priority
of the Company.

The Company always sticks to strict product quality
control throughout the production process. The
Company’s quality control is executed primarily in
accordance with relevant requirements of GMP quality
management system.

The Company has formulated a complete set of quality
inspection management standards covering traditional
Chinese medical materials, auxiliary ingredients, packaging
materials, semi-finished and finished products, and sets
out requirements on various test objects, test methods
and test contents. During the year, the Company had no
products recall due to quality.

Meanwhile, the Company carried out advertisement
promotion in accordance with the law, further safeguarded
the rights and interests of consumers, ensured the legal
compliance of the Company’s advertisement promotion
and stringently prohibited any acts that would cause
damage to the image of the Company and the brand, such
as illegal advertisements.

36  Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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Anti-corruption
All of the Group’s operations are in compliance with local
and national legislation on standards of conduct, such as
with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong
and relevant legislation on anti-corruption and bribery in
mainland China.

The Group requires employees to strictly conform to
code of business ethics and forbids any corruption bribe
behavior as stipulated in the employment contracts.
In case of any conflict of interest, it must be reported
to the Group’s management immediately. Employees,
who engage in business operations and represent the
Company’s professional image, are strictly prohibited to
use business opportunities or power for personal interest
or benefit.

Community

8.

Community Investment

The Group always seeks to become a positive momentum
in the communities in which it operates and maintains
close communications and interactions with the
communities in order to contribute to local development.

The Group believes that the creation of a beautiful and
peaceful community relies on the cooperation of people,
corporations and the government. By working together
with various community partners, the Group believes
it can bring a tremendous impact on the sustainable
development of the communities in which it operates.

The Group will also actively encourage the staff to
volunteer their time and skills to benefit local communities.
It provides the employees with the opportunities to explore
more issues of the society and environment and reinforce
the Group’s corporate values.
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Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

NRZZNEKE(FB)EEHENSESHABRAE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY
LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 47
to 124, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31
December 2018, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BRI RES

R REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

NRZZNEKE(FB)EEHENSESHAABRAE

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets
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Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

FIREBIEKS (58 B EHAMERAE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

Refer to Note 3 (critical accounting estimates and judgements) and
Note 24 (trade receivables and contract assets) to the consolidated
financial statements for the related disclosures. As at 31 December
2018, gross trade receivables and contract assets of the Group
amounted to RMB354 million, which accounted for approximately
23% of the Group’s total assets. The allowance for expected credit
losses of trade receivables and contract assets amounted to RMB59
million, all of which was attributable to customers located in China.

Management judgement is required in assessing and determining the
recoverability of trade receivables and contract assets and adequacy
of allowance made using the expected credit losses (“ECL”) model
under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. These judgement includes
estimating and evaluating expected future receipts from customers
based on historical experience, ageing analysis, subsequent
settlement status, past collection history, current economic
conditions and forward looking information.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the receivables and
the estimation and judgement involved in the determination of the
recoverable amounts of trade receivables and contract assets.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s assessment on
recoverability of trade receivables and contract assets included:

- Understood and validated the credit control procedures
performed by the management, including its procedures
on periodic review on aged receivables and assessment on
recoverability of these receivables;

= Evaluating the management’s impairment assessment of trade
receivables;

- Assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss allowance
estimates by examining the information used by management
to form such judgements, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating whether the historical loss
rates are appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information and examining the
actual losses recorded during the current financial year;

= Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile on
trade receivables by checking to the underlying sales invoices;
and

- Tested subsequent settlement of trade receivables balances.
Where settlement had not been received subsequent to the
year end for those unprovided aged receivables beyond the
credit period as at year end, we obtained the management’s
assessment on the recoverability of these debts and
corroborated explanations with historical settlement pattern and
underlying correspondence with the relevant customers.

Based upon the above, we are satisifed that the estimation and
judgement made by the management in respect of the collectability of
receivables were supportable by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

21/F, Tai Yau Building, EBET
181 Johnston Road, HA-2E 18155
Wanchai, Hong Kong RERE211E

BRBMRET RSN BHRRAEN
BfE

BANWER  REGEMBERRBEEESIFHE
HREFFRERMERNERERGLRS AR
R YHABRRMERORBENRE - K],
HER BHTUERBR)REHM Rtz ARE
RAIEEMAE R o RIS E H AR FHEM
Hip AL 8 ESREEREE - SERBERK
FHORRE - BTRERERRCEBRAERDET
BERT AR - BAERRATERBRLER -
BE AR BRI AT A B BREF S SR AR B2 - IR A IR TR
THEBIEALRATGET BESMEREREA
ERBGEMBRRAMELHEERE - AIEH
B 58 BR BR AL AT AR E B K

ERB(EBFTERD) ETETRBER - &
FTEER TERHE - RFTEXREREE ° &M
DI

o FRIMFHEBRIRFESRERM GRS M
BRRFEERNERBGA AR - RET R
MITRFTEF ARE E LR - ARER
FRMEENETRE  EREMERDN
Eif o ANEFFAIRES R BR - B - &
BAER BRI - SOZBRARESIZ
£ A REEHREARFMERAE A
AR R RSN RS BB RMEHN
M E K SRR PR A R o

s  THERFTHBENAIIES - URFTEE
MEFER - BRI IEH B R BN ERE
HEBERMERER -

s FEEEMRASHERNREEREL
SR AR REN SR -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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NRZZNEKE(FB)EEHENSESHAABRAE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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NRZZNEKE(FB)EEHENSESHABRAE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Yu Kwong Man.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Yu Kwong Man

Director
Practising Certificate number P04645

Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEBmRkHMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE—F—)\F+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
2018 2017
—E-NF —ET—+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR®T T ARETTT
Revenue I'ON 4 647,672 645,303
Cost of sales SHES AR (115,554) (114,250)
Gross profit £ 532,118 581 053
Other income E At g A 6 51,576 24,008
Other gains HoAth Uy 7 7 6,612 -
Distribution and selling costs DIHRIBERT (375,480) (835,128)
Administrative expenses TR (28,450) (47,165)
Profit from operations £ T 186,376 172,768
Finance costs Bh & A A 8 (53) -
Profit before income tax KR BT 1554 B 08 A1) 9 186,323 172,768
Income tax expense FRSBisz i 10(a) (25,107) (28,366)
Profit for the year N FE i F) 161,216 144,402
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEUas _ _
Total comprehensive income for the year 7% E2HE Uz HA5E 161,216 144,402
Profit attributable to: BAT EEAREF
Owners of the Company ViNINETE ZE PN 161,216 144,402
Total comprehensive income DT EAZ2EKES
attributable to: .
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE T Z=IN 161,216 144,402
Earnings per share BRAF
— Basic (RMB cents) —ERARES) 11 28.78 25.77

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — B&lf < fitsr B AL A M SRR BLE 2 — 2D °
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

= A
meEEEER
As at 31 December 2018
R-ZE-NF+ZH=1+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(HARKZT)
2018 2017
—E-N\E —FE—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR¥F T ARETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Bearer biological assets TR EMEE 16 11,745 11,440
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENKEE 17 156,591 166,133
Prepaid land lease payments LS 18 15,068 15,520
Construction in progress EEITR 19 67,588 44127
Intangible assets EWEE 21 - -
Deferred tax assets EEFHIBE E 31 944 316
251,936 237,536
Current assets REEE
Inventories =zE 22 52,456 50,722
Trade receivables FEUE 5 AR 24(a) 249,326 244,855
Contract assets AHEE 24(b) 45,309 -
Other receivables, deposits HmEWsIE - fTe &k
and prepayments TEf A 25 225,408 108,577
Loan receivables R E R 26 - 2,500
Prepaid land lease payments Faft i S 18 454 454
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFTABRK
profit or loss W ERE 23 571,612 -
Available-for-sale financial assets A ENTHEE - 483,000
Cash and cash equivalents He RIBSEMEY 27 158,340 110,428
1,302,905 1,000,536
Current liabilities mEEE
Trade payables B E SRR 28 31,705 35,201
Contract liabilities BHEE 14,779 =
Other payables, deposits received HEMERNFIE - 2l
and accruals HEY4 0 4 280,446 111,697
Deferred income PRI YA 30 589 1,789
Income tax payable TSR 20,645 27,380
Other tax payables H A S T IE 16,754 21,236
Loan from government authority BT B 29 1,240 1,333
Dividend payable FERTAR B 9,326 1,447
375,484 200,083
Net current assets REEESE 927,421 800,453
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABEE 1,179,357 1,037,989

48  Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
nEEERER

As at 31 December 2018
R=ZF—)/\F+=A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZTR)

56,025
1,077,000




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE-_F—N\F+_A=+—HILFZE
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

51,098 33,242 870,662 1,011,027

161,216 161,216

33,242 1,031,878 1,172,243

(39,218) (39,218)

56,025 51,098 33,242 992,660 1,133,025




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN ==
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_F-N\FT_H=1+—HIFEF
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKEZETR)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
(03 ARETR ARET T
Cash from operating activities RETHEE2HS
Profit before income tax BR TS24 A& A1 186,323 172,768
Adjustments for: FHEIER
Interest income FEMA 6 (4,677) (2,746)
Yield gains on financial assets at fair value BATEF NERE
through profit or loss 5B E R R 6 (16,994) -
Yield gains on available-for-sale financial A ENISEE
assets [l 5 U - (10,589)
(Reversal of)/loss allowance for trade W E 58 FURE
receivables (%), % 9 (6,232) 24,698
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving BRE R AT BB
inventories 9 1,093 179
Interest expenses L H 8 53 =
Reversal of loss allowance for M E TR B 2 5
loan receivables 6 (7,500) (2,500)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments TR LinAE 2 g 452 454
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥ BERSENE 9 19,339 20,874
Impairment of intangible assets B AERERE 160 -
Net gain on financial assets at fair value BATERAERZR
through profit or loss DB EERF 7 (6,612) -
Reversal of impairment on other receivables Ho At e Wk IR Rl (B [ B (1,509) -
Government subsidies B+ Eh 6 (4,676) (4,950)
Recognition of deferred income ERELTIWA 6 (1,789) (1,949
Operating cash flows before working HELSE PR L
capital changes BenE 157,431 196,273
Increase in inventories FEEM (2,827) (24,846)
Decrease in trade receivables W E 5 ER U 1,761 150
Increase in contract assets BHEELM (45,309) -
Increase in other receivables, deposits HiEWEIE - ;18 K%
and prepayments TR FRIEE N (115,322) (15,572)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables FERE SRR CRD),/ M (3,496) 3,503
Increase in other payables, deposits received and ~ E b ERZIE - 2] &
accruals RIERT B R M 168,749 6,284
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEEM 14,779 =
(Decrease)/increase in other tax payables HibEAFACHD), /B0 (4,482) 2,383
Cash generated from operations REXBEE 2R ® 171,284 168,175
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T N\FFR

51



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

52

AN ==
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_F-N\FT_H=1+—HIFEF
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
2018 2017
—E- )\EF —= _‘tg
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
li0fza ARBTR ARETFTT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEECZRERE
Cash generated from operations ey **%%F E7BE 171,284 168,175
Income tax paid ERER (32,418) (21,668)
Interest paid BRFE 8 (53) -
Net cash generated from operating activities ~ K& FBELHLFE 138,813 146,507
Cash flows from investing activities REEBELECHERE
Purchase of bearer biological assets BETRBENEE 16 (305) (696)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BENREE 17 (9,797) (11,012)
Purchase of construction in progress BEEREIRE 19 (23,461) (24,179)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATEGT ABRZH
through profit or loss A E 28 (967,000) -
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BENENENTBEE - (960,000)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVEE (160) -
Proceeds from settlement of financial assets SR AT ET ABRN
at fair value through profit or loss B EEMSTE 23 885,000 -
Proceeds from settlement of available-for-sale RSN EE
financial assets ; - 780,540
Decrease in loan receivables [EREFUR D 10,000 5,000
Interest received RGN 6 4,677 2,746
Yield gains on financial assets at fair value BATER ANEwE
through profit or loss B 75 B E B R e 6 16,994 =
Yield gains on available-for-sale financial assets ~ AJ i & K81 75 & 22 [ 3Rz - 10,555
Net cash used in investing activities REERFAZESFE (84,052) (196,946)
Cash flows from financing activities MEXBELZRERE
Proceeds from government subsidies R T fR BE P8 TR 25,110 6,150
Repayment of loan from government authority BEBTREE (620) -
Dividend paid ERRE (31,339) (21)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from MELK (R EE2
financing activities BEeFE (6,849) 6,129
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BeRASEEMEM (RD)
cash equivalents ek 47,912 (44,310)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FHBEE&RBEEEY 110,428 154,738
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRALRBEZEY 158,340 110,428
Analysis of the balance of cash and ReRBRSEENERIN
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances Be RRITEH 158,340 110,428

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29
December 1995, under the relevant provisions of the Company
Law of the PRC, the Company was re-organised from a
state-owned enterprise to a limited liability company. On 16
August 1996, with the approval of the Economic Restructuring
Commission of Jilin Province, the Company was further
converted into a joint stock limited company. On 20 April 1999,
the Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of retained
profits in the proportion of one bonus share for every two
existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 24
May 2001.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products
in the PRC under the brand names of Changlong and Qing Tong.
The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 20.

The legal address and the principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section to
the annual report.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretation issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong,
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”)
and the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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A WA K3 —IRALIREILL B - AR B R
M FE B AR IAZBEITALRR °
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EBBARSMARD A ([BFT])GEM
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation

()

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by certain
biological assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Change in accounting policy and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the
first time, the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (collectively referred to as
the “new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”),
which are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning
from 1 January 2018. A summary of the new and revised
HKFRS applied by the Group is set out as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers and the related
amendments

HK(IFRIC) 22 Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration

Except as described below, the application of other
new and revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
financial positions for the current and prior periods and/
or on the disclosures set out in the notes to consolidated
financial statements.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018

2.

BERETHBERBE(E)

(b)

(c)

mBERE

KR AV BRRERELKANEE
PIfRE  WARFEAEZETAE
Y& E NIRRT EF AR
BEFHERT -

IR & B B 75 85 2 R AR 2L B 7%
REAEMETHARSE ME
BEERERAASE S HRRINAE
VT o 0% B A B K S )l 3
RREMZEENE BRI LA
HGRAVBHREAMEBEAN ZER
PRMTEESHREE -

B BEREEZEE

REBRAFE HXER T H
EAgTMAg (BB A
g )EMITRAEEE20184F1A4
1B BREE LR H ] R
S1ER| BT RRE (R AT
RIHERT BB IEMELER]]) o K
SEERANG REET B BT
HAEERIMEHTOT

SEHBASANAN 2RIA

SEHBRSANEIE KOREFANZHERES
B

%5 (ARHRASRE MERSRRARR

£84) -2BE0%

BRI XXPAsN - RAFE A E A
e MR BBV BREERY
AEBRANFE MBEFE 2T
RERBBHRAR, RZEEE Y
BHRERMEMH cRBLBEERY
@ .



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Change in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9

Financial Instruments and the related consequential

amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new

requirements for 1) the classification and measurement of

financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit

losses (“ECL”) for financial assets and 3) general hedge

accounting.

()

(@

Available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets

The unlisted financial instruments with the carrying
amount of approximately HK$483,000,000 were
reclassified from AFS financial assets to financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).
This is because even though the Group’s business
model is to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, the cash flows of these
investments do not meet the HKFRS 9 criteria as
solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

There was no material impact on the amounts
recognised in relation to these assets from the
application of HKFRS 9.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(c) Change in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

(b) Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all
trade receivables. Except for those which had been
determined as credit impaired under HKAS 39, the
remaining balances are grouped based on past due
analysis. The Group has therefore estimated the
expected loss rates for the trade receivables on the
same basis.

Except for those which had been determined as
credit impaired under HKAS 39, ECL for other
financial assets at amortised cost, including
receivables, cash and bank balances, are assessed
on 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) basis as there had
been no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

(c) Financial liabilities
There is no impact on the Group’s accounting for
financial liabilities previously carried at amortised
costs remained to be measured at amortised cost
under HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Change in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“HKFRS 15”)

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’ from 1 January 2018 which
resulted in changes in accounting policies. The Group
adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified retrospective
approach which means that the cumulative impact of the
adoption (if any) will be recognised in retained earnings
as of 1 January 2018 and that comparatives will not be
restated.

Revenue is recognised when control of the products has
transformed, being when the customer has inspected
and accepted the products. The Group does not expect
to have any contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. Sales are
made with a credit term of 180 days to its customers in
Mainland China, which is consistent with market practice.
As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money as there is
no significant financing component. There is no material
impact for adopting the HKFRS 15 on revenue recognition.

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to
contracts with customers

The Group has also voluntarily changed the presentation of
the following amounts in the consolidated balance sheet to
reflect the terminology of HKFRS 15.

2.

BERETHBERBE(E)

(c)

B BERREEZEE (H)

BRMKREERE155E R E HE
BEEAHzWE

BT N\FE—A—HE ~x&E
BB AN B 8 B % R & 2E RSB 1555
[BEEAHNE]  BHETHER
BT o REELEBBH A K
MBS wEERZE1558 - B
KR ERETE (1E) BR=F
—N\F—A—HEREAFERE
BB ET -

W 10 BE am O I R B RS B (AN &2
FeRWEMR)ER - AEETR
AT EAAEEMERTERSE
EPNSHREBB—FNAH &
THEAEZFPHHEEZEENS
180H - HEMHEH - Atk - &
B E L B A B E E AR
RHERE  RERYESAREK
D RMEBEMHHREEAEA5
SRE R ERY BEATE -

BIHEFENEHCEERAR

AEETCEREERAEERR
RPTINEREO2FNARREEH
B EERIE155RAIMEE o

EMEEEREACEXROHERAH
T N\FFEH

57



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

58

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Change in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

(“HKFRS 15”) (continued)

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to

contracts with customers (continued)

° Contract assets in relation to control of the products
has transformed that is not yet unconditional were
previously included in trade receivables, and are now
separately disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements.

° Contract liabilities in relation to deposits from
customers were previously included in accruals and
other payables, and are now separately disclosed in
the consolidated balance sheet.

The Group elects to adopt HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15
without restating comparatives. The reclassification and
the adjustments arising from the adoption of HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 15 are therefore not reflected in the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017, but
are recognised in the opening of the consolidated balance
sheet on 1 January 2018.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9
are disclosed in note 2(0).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Change in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and
other items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39
at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.

2. EXSHEHEBEGE)

(c) BfBEERBREZZE(H)

TREBREE B EHRELEDE9
SR BB LT REREIEARTE
HEBEBEBNMBEERMEAE
AR HAhTE B 201841 1 H B X
FERBBNSBERETE -

HKAS 39 HKFRS 9

and HKAS 18 and HKFRS 15
carrying carrying

amounts at amounts at

31 December 2017 Reclassification 1 January 2018
R20174512731A 1201851 A18
REFEEER REENKES
$393 ERIEI%H
BHNEEE BHAE BHMEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBT R ARBT R

Current assets RBEE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ RAFEHF ABRZHBEE

profit and loss 483,000 (488,000) -
Avallable-for-sale financial assets AHEHENIKEE - 483,000 483,000
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFNERNYBEE

profit or loss
Trade receivables ETES 244,855 (45,981) 198,874
Contract assets RNEE - 45,981 45,981
Current liabilities RBaE
Other payable, deposits received and HiERE  EMGIe RIESER

accruals 105,413 (7,760) 97,653
Contract liabilities AHERE = 7,760 7,760
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) New standards, amendments and interpretation

(e)

of HKFRSs issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2018 and
have not been early adopted by the Group

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKFRS 16 Leases

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all the new and amendments to HKFRSs
above will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements in the foreseeable future.

Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(i) Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. |ldentifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e) Consolidation (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Business combination (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with
the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity as
owners. The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired
of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary
is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e) Consolidation (continued)

(iii)

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Separate financial statements

Investment in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less impairment.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivables.

Impairment testing of the investment in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Biological assets
Biological assets are living animals and plants managed
by the Group which is involved in the agricultural activities
of the transformation of biological assets for sale or into
agricultural product.

Biological assets are measured at fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs at initial recognition and at each
balance sheet date. The fair value of these biological
assets is determined based on active market prices in the
local market with reference to comparable age, breed and
genetic merit. The gain or loss arising on initial recognition
and subsequent changes in fair values less estimated
point-of-sale costs of biological assets is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which it arise. Biological
assets that are in the stage of cultivation or do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
balance sheet at cost less any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the assets carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their costs or revalued amounts to their residual
value over their estimated useful lives. The assets’ residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Plant and machinery 6 years
Transportation equipment 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on the disposal are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Transfer from property, plant and equipment to
investment property carried at cost

The Group transfers a property from property, plant and
equipment to investment property when there is a change
of use to hold the property to earn rentals or/and for capital
appreciation rather than for its own use in the ordinary
course of business.

Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment property is stated at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is
recognised so as to write off the cost of investment
properties over their estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(i) Prepaid land lease payments
Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at historical cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

(k) Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation,
and is stated at historical cost less any impairment losses.
No depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time as the relevant property, plants and equipment
are available for use. Cost comprises all construction
expenditure and other direct costs of construction.
Construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when the asset
being constructed becomes available to use.

() Intangible assets
(i) Purchased know-how and prescription
Purchased know-how and prescription are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is charged on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
which range from 5 to 12 years from the date of
commercial production. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
balance sheet date, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

() Intangible assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the financial period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities is
capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the costs of materials, direct labour, and appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation begins when
development is completed and the assets is
available for use. Other development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the financial period in
which it is incurred.

Purchased in-process research and development
assets acquired through separate purchase
In-process research and development assets
acquired through separate purchase are recognised
as intangible assets at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation and impairment assessment are
accounted for in a similar manner as internal
development expenditure set out in (i) above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Impairment of non-financial assets

(n)

(0)

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average cost formula. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Financial assets

(a) Classification
From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its
financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

— those to be measured subsequently at fair

value (either through other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) or through profit or loss), and

— those to be measured at amortised cost.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(o) Financial assets (continued)

(@)

Classification (continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”).

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(o) Financial assets (continued)

()

Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition
of the investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other losses in the statement of
profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its financial assets carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables, see note
3(b) for further details.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(o) Financial assets (continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 December

2017

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications
that the debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(o) Financial assets (continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
If a loan or held-to maturity investment has
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(o) Financial assets (continued)
(e) Accounting policies applied until 31 December
2017 (continued)

(i)

Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each
reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. For debt
securities, the Group uses the criteria refer to
(a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the
security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence
exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and
the current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that financial asset previously recognised
in consolidated profit or loss is removed from
equity and recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value
of a debt instrument classified as available-
for-sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in
consolidated profit or loss, the impairment loss
is reversed through the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(p) Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. In the consolidated and entity balance sheet,
bank overdrafts are shown within “bank borrowings” in
current liabilities.

(q) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in consolidated other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in consolidated other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
The management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (or laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q) Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(r)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resource
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprised lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“BMB”), which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss within “finance income or cost”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss income
statement within “other gains and/(losses)”. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
consolidated other comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised
in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in consolidated other
comprehensive income.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (continued)
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in consolidated
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available for
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(o) income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in consolidated other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Government grants

Grants from the PRC government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with the
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to prepaid land lease payment
and intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on a straight-line basis over the expected useful
lives of the related assets.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognized until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The employees in Mainland China participate in
the defined contribution retirement plans managed
by the local government authorities whereby they
are required to contribute to the schemes at fixed
rates of the employees’ salary costs. The Group’s
contributions to these plans are charged to profit or
loss when incurred.

The Group has no obligations for the payment of the
retirement and other post-retirement benefits of staff
other than the contributions described above.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. Trade and other receivables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment (see note 2(0)(d) for
a description of impairment policy). If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
(x) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

0]
(ii)
(ii)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the (i) —EAEBAZ—EH8HN
other entity (an associate or joint venture of a BAATHA SR (R
member of a group of which the other entity is ARE—EEHKE M

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

a member);
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Revenue recognition
Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2018

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received and receivable, and represents amounts
receivable for goods supplied or service performed, stated
net of rebates and returns. The Group recognises revenue
when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured;
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities, as described below. The
Group bases its estimates of returns on historical results,
taking into consideration the type of customers, the type of
transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of good directly to the customers
is recognized at the point that the control of the inventory
have passed to the customers, which is primarily upon
the acceptance of the products by the customers. The
customers have full discretion over the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the products.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer
pays consideration before the Group transfers goods or
services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contractual liabilities are recognised
as revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(2)

(aa)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Accounting policies applied until 31 December 2017

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales with the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities
as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(i)  Sales of goods
Sales revenue is recognised when the merchandise
is delivered and title has been passed to the
customers.

(i) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer).
If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Impairment of assets (other than trade and other
receivables)
The Group tests annually whether assets have suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(l). The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate present value, which has been
prepared on the basis of the management’s assumptions
and estimates.

(b) Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
management judgement as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking
into consideration forward-lookinginformation that is
reasonable and supportable available without undue costs
or effort. At the end of each reporting period, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed and changes
in the forward-looking information are considered. In
addition, trade receivables with significant balances and
credit impaired are assessed for ECL individually. The
provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in note 38.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

()

(d)

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation or amortisation charges for
its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
purchase know-how and prescription of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation or amortisation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Company recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period
in which such determination is made.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products.
Revenue represents the invoiced value of merchandise sold less
allowances for returns, discounts, value-added tax and other
sales related taxes.

WA
AEEZEIBEXBRRERDHEPERE
BER - WAEHEEBRRNWERE IO
BMEBREE  #THl - BMEBRLEMHEE
HEAH AN S

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETIT
Sales of Chinese medicines and FR 2 Ky B8 BEE D GHE
pharmaceutical products 647,672 645,303
SEGMENT INFORMATION sEER
Segment information o EpE F

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision-makers (“CODM?”), for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods delivered.

The executive directors have identified that, the Group has only
one reportable operating segment, which is the manufacture
and distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical
products in the PRC. Since this is the only reportable operating
segment of the Group, no further operating segment analysis
thereof is presented.

Geographical information

In addition, the Group’s revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities and capital expenditures are predominantly attributable
to a single geographical region, which is the PRC. Therefore, no
analysis by geographical regions is presented.

Information about major customers

There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017 contributed over 10% of the total
operating revenue of the Group.
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HMWA
2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF AR¥T AREBTIT
Recovery of bad debts previously 1 5] 2 i S 2 BR
written off - 16
Bank interest income RITH BWA 4,677 2,356
Government subsidies (Note) ESEEENC ) 4,676 4,950
Recognition of deferred income TR IR A 30 1,789 1,949
Interest income on loan receivables  FEUE ZUF BUL A - 390
Yield gains on financial assets at fair & A (A ABRH 7%
value through profit or loss & EE Bl e 16,994 =
Yield gains on available-for-sale Al & M B 75 & E Bl =R
financial assets W zs - 10,555
Reversal of provision for impairment &Lk & kR (B 1 45 (o] 8
of loan receivables 26 7,500 2,500
Reversal of loss allowance of FEUS B 5 BR SRORL (B #E
trade receivables o] #2 7,742 -
Compensation received B EMA 4,426 -
Penalty income SR 1,639 421
Others HAh 2,133 871
51,576 24,008
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group received Het . REBE-_T—NER-_ZT—t&F+-_A=+—

subsidies from various local municipal government bodies in the PRC,
which aimed at the general financing of the business and technology

HILFE - AKBESH BRI T HAT
MMED B EALEENERREMERE

development of the Group. H—BHEES o
7. OTHER GAINS 7. Hit=
2018 2017
—E-NF —F—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Net gain on financial assets at fair value WA EF AR
through profit or loss BTG E ERF I 6,612 =
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. REMA
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Interest expenses on a loan from BUSHEAER 2 F S
government authority =53] (53) -

EMEEEREACEXROHERAH

—T— ) \FF3f



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R T RE
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(UARBZT)

2018
—2-N\F
RMB’000
ARBT R

105,675

1,093

(6,232)

18,649
102,369
2,381




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(a)

Income tax represents:

10. FIEH < i

FriSsias :
2018 2017
—g-N\f | =T 5
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

PRC corporate income tax R TS
— Current year —RNEEZ 23,876 29,601
— Underprovision/(Overprovision) —BAFEREBIR
in prior years (FRREREE) 1,807 (673)
Deferred taxation (Note 31) RERIA (H7£31) (576) (562)
25,107 28,366

The PRC corporate income tax is provided according to
the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress
approved the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, which
became effective from 1 January 2008. In accordance with
the new tax law, an unified enterprise income tax rate of
25% is applied to both domestic-invested enterprises and
foreign- invested enterprises.

On 17 September 2015, the Company was accredited
as a “National New and High-tech Enterprise” by the
Jilin Provincial Science and Technology Bureau (& #k
BRI EFiTEE). The Company is entitled to a reduced
PRC corporate Income tax rate of 15% for another three
consecutive years commenced since year 2018.

PEEEMFRIRET BEARE
RIER R -

RZFZLF=A+E  2EA
AREBHETECEMFTL - A
—ETNF-H-HBEN - RIE
MR TBERERINEDELS
—HR25% BB EET o

AARRZZE—HEFNA+LEE
EMERBRMERS [BREHE
flrd3 | - RARIN —F— /\Fie5t
BE=FAERARTRECEMEH
KE15%HMNTIA

EMEEEREACEXROHERAH
T N\FFEH
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2018
—B-N\F
RMB’000
AR®T T

186,323

27,948
(4,172)
101
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

11.

12.

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2018 is based on the profit attributable to
owners of the Group for the year of RMB161,216,000 (2017:
RMB144,402,000) and 560,250,000 shares in issue during the
year (2017: 560,250,000 shares).

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the years
ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2018 includes a profit of RMB162,198,000 (2017:
RMB144,365,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (Note 33).

DIVIDENDS

The Company declared and paid a special dividend of RMB7
cents per share on 22 April 2018.

No final dividend has been proposed or paid by the Company in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

11.

12.

13.

BREF
HE_ZT-N\F+_A=+—HBHILFE
BREARFTIIBEFAREBE RS AR
1% A A R #161,216,000 (= F —+
F: AR¥144,402,0007T) & A E
17 I& 15 560,250,000 f& ( = & — + 4
560,250,0000% )5+ & -

HREE-_Z—N\Fh-_ZT—+F+-A
=t HUEFETEEEEELRAR - &
W25 FREEERT -

RRTFER ARG ET

BHE—Z—N\E+=-A=+—BIFEE
A RAREA AREEFHSEEFIAR
#162,198,000 L (=T —tF : AR
144,365,0007T) * %@ M E R AR A Z 8
TEmE PRI (F13E33) o

RE
ARRER=Z—N\FRA-+-AEK
REHRIREEBRARETS -

AR Y TEHHRNBEE T —/\F
ToA=T—RIEFEZEFRERE (=
T+ &)

2018 2017

—E-N\F —EF—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARETIT

Special dividends HERIIR B 39,218 -

EMEEEREACEXROHERAH
T N\FFEH
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

Directors’
fees

2k
RMB’000

ARBTR

Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits
e 28
REMFIR
RMB’000
ARET R

Discretionary
bonus
WA
RMB’000
AR®TR
(Note ()
(Hiat0)

Pension
fund
contributions
BRFSHR
RMB’000
ARET T
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2018 Total
—E-N\F
#He
RMB’000
ARBTR
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSRITHAESHME (&)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (@) EE=M<E(E)
2017 —E—+1F
Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension

Directors’ benefits  Discretionary fund 2017 Total

fees T ER bonus  contrbutions < —F—+%F

e  REMAR WERL  BARSHR Be

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETL

(Note (i)
(Hizt())
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Zhang Hong (Chairman) ~ 3&3A(E/E) - 307 199 - 506
Zhang Xiao Guang REX - 233 132 18 383
Zhao Bao Gang fesh={l] - 182 44 42 268
Wu Guo Wen REX = 60 217 18 295
Independent Non-Executive BV IHTEE -
Directors:
Gao Yong Cai SKA - - - - -
Tian Jie iR = = - - -
Qiu Fang Ping il P - - - = =
- 782 592 78 1,452
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration Bt ¢ () WISt mTMES ekER
Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having 2 YhBEEeAEAEER
determined with reference to the Group’s operating results, ek (@A KA S
individual performance and comparable market statistics. THIEBIERET -

EHRERERELLCEERHERAT 9l
—B—\FER
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits
¢ 28
REMFZE
RMB’000
ARBTR

Discretionary Pension fund
bonus contributions

MEEAL
RMB’000
ARBTR
(Note ()
(K@)

RE N
RMB’000

ARBFT

2018 Total
—E-N\F
“mme
RMB’000
ARBTR
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSRITHAEME(E)

REMUNERATION (continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals during the year included
four Directors (2017: four Directors) whose remuneration
were set out in (a) above. Details of remuneration of the
remaining one (2017: one) highest paid, non-director
employee whose remuneration was below HK$1,000,000
(equivalent to RMB881,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018 and RMB833,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017) are as follows:

(c)

EEERSHMAL
FARGERaTWALERENRE
B(ZT—+F:OEEH)  H
SHBREX@BEHT - B
AREBHEB —EEETMIEESE
B(ZZ—+tF: —2)Z2FHER
1,000,000 8 L (B = = F — \F
+Z A=+ BALEEEHSENAR
#881,000 T RBE-_T—+&F+=
A=+ —BLFEHSERARYE
833,0007T) « HEFMEFEWT

2018 2017
—g-N\f | =T 5
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWT T ARBETT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits #4284 & H A FIZE 27 226
Pension scheme contributions ERES TR 20 18
291 244

Other than the emoluments of directors disclosed in
(a) above, the emoluments of supervisors and other
senior management whose profiles are included in the
Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
section of this report were below HK$1,000,000,
equivalent to RMB881,000 (2017: equivalent to
RMB833,000) for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to these highest paid
employees as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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BNEFREARE [EZEREREE
EERE| —fiNESkREMERE
BEAEMNMERBE_ZT—N\F
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—+tFE+_A=Z+—HLEFEHK
71,000,000 7 * HHER AR
881,000t (ZZE—+tF : HERA
R #833,0007T) °
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

15.

16.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group participate in a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) organised by the PRC municipal
government authority in the Jilin Province whereby the Group
is required to make contributions to the Scheme at certain-
percentage of the eligible employees’ relevant salaries. The
local government authority is responsible for the entire pension
obligation payable to retired employees.

The Group’s contribution to retirement benefits schemes for the
year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to RMB2,520,000
(2017: RMB2,142,000). The Group has no other material
obligation for the payment of pension benefits associated with
the Scheme.

15.

R RAEFIET &

E TR KT &
REBETERBESSHRA LR - AEE2
S8 Py R B 7 AR T T G B AR A E R A
FORMREAG B ([t 81)) - ]|t - A%
BAZAEREEMMABEIEN —Ea D
Lo Rz ET B ER © 3077 BUR 4 B8 3 FE iR
REEMZEERSFHERETAR

REBEE=ZZE—NF+=ZA=+—HLILF
B AEERZARNERARENTEERE
AR#2520,000c(ZF—tF : AR
2,142,0007T ) o A5 [0 % E th A5 B e AT
SIMEREBRBREREE ©

BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 16. TR BEYEE
Bearer biological assets comprise: TRBEMEERTE :
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFTT
Ginseng, at cost A2 - BAE 11,745 11,440
Vineyard, at cost BE 0 BERAE - =
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=+—HZEAEE 11,745 11,440

EMEEEREACEXROHERAH
T N\FFEH
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2018
—B-N\F

RMB’000
ARBT R
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAAEBZT)
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - RERZE
Furniture,
fixtures and
Plant and Transportation equipment
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment  {FE  £E Total
BF RBERKSR BaRk k&M st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETE ARETT AREKTT AR®TR
Cost: A :
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 151,061 97,830 6,026 4,071 258,988
Transfer from construction e} Ti2& A (#519)
in progress (Note 19) 793 2,374 — 156 3,323
Additions R 224 9,922 854 12 11,012
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+ZA=+—H 152,078 110,126 6,880 4,239 273,323
Additions R - 7,191 2,576 30 9,797
At 31 December 2018 R_F-N\F+-_A=1+—H 152,078 117,317 9,456 4,269 283,120

Accumulated depreciation: 25t :

At 1 January 2017 W-Z—tF—Hf—A 33,433 47,998 2,934 1,951 86,316
Charge for the year (Note 9) R $4(fi1:29) 4,672 14,926 732 544 20,874
At 31 December 2017 R-_E—+F+-A=1+—H 38,105 62,924 3,666 2,495 107,190
Charge for the year (Note 9) E R $5(ff319) 4,462 13,689 808 380 19,339
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+ZA=+—H 42,567 76,613 4,474 2,875 126,529
Carrying amount: KA :

At 31 December 2018 R=B—N\E+=A=+—AH 109,511 40,704 4,982 1,394 156,591
At 31 December 2017 R-Z—+F+-A=1—H 113,973 47,202 3,214 1,744 166,133

EMEEBREREA(CEERBERAR 97
T N\FFR
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

18. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 18. LS

RMB’000
ARETTT
Cost: AN
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 RZE—+F—H—H"
and 31 December 2018 —T—tF+-A=+—HkFK
—E-NF+ZH=+—8H 19,785
Accumulated amortisation: RETEESH
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 3,357
Charge for the year (Note 9) FAZE(MEI) 454
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+=-A=+—H 3,811
Charge for the year (Note 9) FRNZHE(HEE9) 452
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+=ZH=+—8H 4,263
Carrying amount: AREE :
At 31 December 2018 RZEBE—-N\FT+ZHA=+—H 15,5622
At 31 December 2017 RZZT—tF+=A=+—H 15,974
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETTT
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+-—A=+—HEAE 15,522 15,974
Portion classified as current assets DEARBEE 2D (454) (454)
Portion classified as non-current assets DEABIERDEEZID 15,068 15,520

The above medium-term land use rights are located in the PRC. LA _E AR BR A 3 55 AR S AL R AR R o

The Group recognised the amount as the carrying amount of AEECEERZEBAHRBEECERA
the relevant assets and will transfer this to profit or loss over the B THERLwHAEZAIAFHRERE
useful lives of the land leases. i E

98  Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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2018
—E-NF
RMB’000
ARBT R

2018
—B-N\F
RMB’000
AR®T T
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

20.

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 were as

follows:

Country of incorporation

. RBBARARE (&)

RZZE-—NF+-A=+—H WERA

BT

Percentage of

and operation and ordinary shares Principal
Name of companies legal entity status held directly activity
AR S R EERSE
RENERRK ERERGW
AT BB EEBERM Bokk TEFEK
EMEMTEREMKEERAE HE - BREEAFA 100% EEEH
PRC, limited liability company Dormant
EMEREREDRRERAF e BREEAA] 100% &8 k5D tHIRE
ZEmn
PRC, limited liability company Manufacture and
distribution of
health products
EMRERMBEREEAF FE - BREEAA] 100% mIARFRES
PRC, limited liability company Not yet
commenced
business
EMEREFMEREEGRAF FE - BREEAA] 100% mIARFRES
PRC, limited liability company Not yet
commenced
business
EMEREGEYRIERERAF FE - BREEAA] 100% mIARFRES
PRC, limited liability company Not yet
commenced
business

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries classified as current
assets/(liabilities) respectively in the Company’s balance sheet
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

21. BLEE

Purchased
know-how and
prescription

B A H 1T &
&y
RMB’000
AREET T
Cost: A :

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 67,975
Additions N -
Disposal k= =
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=-_A=1+—H 67,975
Additions 3N 160
Disposal HE -
At 31 December 2018 RZE—NF+=_HA=1+—H 68,135

Accumulated amortisation and ZrBERRERE

impairment loss:

At 1 January 2017 RZF—+tF—H—H 67,975
Amortisation charge B -
Write back on disposal tH 5 B 48 =
Impairment VERED =
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+F+_-_HA=+—H 67,975
Amortisation charge #H -
Write back on disposal o & [0 3% -
Impairment (Note 9) AR (HTaF9) 160
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F+=A=+—H 68,135

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2018

ARTEE
R_ZF—N\F+=-A=1—H

At 31 December 2017

R_ZB—+F+_H=+—H

EMEEEREACEXROHERAH

T N\FFR
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B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 21. EREE (&)
Purchased know-how and prescription were acquired through BABMEELS HEBLE=F6EMH
research and development cooperation with independent third % BEEUARESIBA ©
parties and were all acquired in cash.
During the year, the Directors reviewed the carrying amount of FA - ESRBEZZEERREEZLE
the purchased know-how and prescription based on the future Pt T AR 825 2 BRTEE - &K
economic benefits generated from these assets. Impairment FEERAREEEARE160,000T( ==
loss of RMB160,000 was recognised for the current year (2017: —tF | o
Nil).
22. INVENTORIES 22. 78
2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETTT
Raw materials R 18,607 20,163
Work in progress ER 29,462 21,981
Finished goods RUBK A 6,805 9,903
54,874 52,047
Less: Provision for obsolete and W BEERS T ERE
slow-moving inventories (2,418) (1,325)
52,456 50,722

During the year ended 31 December 2018, provision
on obsolete and slow-moving inventories amounted to
RMB1,093,000 was made (2017: RMB179,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no obsolete and
slow-moving inventories were written off (2017: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no obsolete and
slow-moving inventories which the provision were already made
in prior years, were written off (2017: Nil).

102 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

23.

24,

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. &4

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

FEH ABRG I EE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
Current assets mENE E
Unlisted financial instruments LT TA 571,612 -
The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or BEATEFABZNVBEEATEEAR
loss are within level 3 of fair value hierarchy (note 37(f)). FEBATE=ER(HMFE37H)
TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT 24. EIREZRARENEE
ASSETS .
(a) Trade receivables (a) EWEZEREX
2018 2018 2017
31 December 1 January = 31 December
—E-N\F —E-NF —T—+F
12A31H 181H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®T R ARBT T
(restated)
KES
(Note 2(c))
(BfEE2(c))
Trade receivables FEIE ZERER 269,712 222,772 310,641
Less: Loss allowance W R E R (20,386) (23,898) (65,786)
Trade receivables — net TEWE ZEER— 558 249,326 198,874 244,855

()  The Group’s policy is to allow an average credit
period of 180 days to its trade customers.

(i)  The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on
the invoice date and net of loss allowance of trade
receivables, is as follows:

i) AEEERRALTESIEFRT
H180H 2 &8 -

iy WEZZAHLRDKERKRES
BRFURERE  BRE SRR

RERER DATLOT :
2018 2017
—E-N\EFE —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARWTF T ARBETT

Current BNEA 59,921 43,467
31-90 days 31-90H 66,108 52,688
91-180 days 91-180H 71,102 42,892
More than 180 days HiB180H 52,195 105,963

249,326 244 855

EMAEEREE(CEERMHBERAR 103
—T— ) \FF3f



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT
ASSETS (continued)

(@ T
(i)

Trade receivables(continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS
9,which permits the use of the lifetime expected
loss provision for trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, these receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the aging from billing. See Note 37(a) for further
information about expected credit loss provision.
Impairment losses are recognised in consolidated
income statement within “administrative expenses”.
See note 2(n) for information about how impairment
losses are calculated.

24. BRESBRARENEE (F)

(a)

FEWE SR (E)

(iii) dxﬁlﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬂu
FOREI ML 7 AR IR TE
HEEEE Ea7nE5E
W sk T8 5T 42 & B 78 HA B 18
e RETERBEEFIE %
ZRINFIERE L REER R
HENERSERERETHEHSG - B
BIEHEEEERENE—D
é“ﬂ RKIEES7 (@) o BIEEE

REWER [TTHAS IRE
*71 c BEBEBEINAFE 2
éﬂ - BHEE2(N)

The movements in the loss allowance during the year FRREREOZBMT ¢
are as follows:
2018 2018 2017
31 December 1 January = 31 December
—E-N\F —E-N\F L e
12H31H 1A1H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AR¥T T ARBT T
(restated)
KE5
Opening balance FAEERR 23,898 14,926 41,088
(Reversal)/Addition OB /1L (3,512) 8,972 24,698
Closing balance F R 20,386 23,898 65,786
Loss allowance had been made for the estimated XERBIIREEEY 2 G5t
irrecoverable amounts arising from the sale of goods. TR El & %EEY - EEE 2
The loss allowance was determined by the directors EIRER R KR E ERERE
with reference to past default experience. £%8 o
(iv) The Directors consider the carrying amount of trade vy Z==RA- fguﬁlm%ﬁﬁ K2 BR
receivables approximates their fair value. ﬁﬁéﬁifﬁ\ NEERE
(b) Contract assets (b) EREE
2018 2018 2017
31 December 1 January = 31 December
—E-N\F —E-N\F —ET—tF
12HA31H 1A1H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'OO_C)
AR®T AR®T ARBT T
(restated)
KEH
(Note 2(c))
(KtEE2(c))
Contract assets BHEE 84,477 87,869 —
Less: Loss allowance B ORE RS (39,168) (41,888) -
Contract assets — net BHEE—FHE 45,309 45,981 -
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 25. HfttfEiFIE - sl & RFENRKE

PREPAYMENTS
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ET—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Deposits and prepayments HEASSEUNECE] 24,706 5,633
Advances to staff, net IR FEE 51,442 1,607
Other receivables, net H b GIE - F5E 9,008 6,807
Bills receivables 140,252 94,530
225,408 108,577

During the year, no provision for impairment on deposits and
prepayments was made (2017: Nil).

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, certain of the Group’s
advances to staff and other receivables were determined to
be impaired. The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of lifetime expected loss provision for
other receivables. The impaired receivables related to staff and
debtors that were in financial difficulties and the following loss

allowance has been made.

FA - WEHET S RIANFORE LR ER
B —TE—tF &) -

RZE-NFRER=ZE—tFF+ZA=1+—
A A&EEREISANMETREREM
RUWHIEREECAERHE A5EERE
785 B 75 o 2 22 BN S5 95 5T PR By B Mk 7 SR T
REHEEESE - S0 REMNERKIE
AEERTBRENE TMERABR
EEEERBAEEL A TEE -

Advanced to staff Other receivables
BEI#R H {th fE KT8
2018 2017 2018 2017

—F-N\E B LF —T-NF T F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE ARBTET AR®BTRE ARSTET

Gross amounts 55,347 5,512 10,558 9,866
Less: Loss allowance B ORE B (3,905) (3,905) (1,550) (3,059)
Net amounts 51,442 1,607 9,008 6,807

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
T N\FFR
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25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 25.

26.

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The Group does not hold any collateral over the above balances.
The movement in the loss allowance of advances to staff and
other receivables during the year, is as follows:

HihEWFIE - ST RFEMIE
(&)
ANEEIWEG il AR A T ERR o
F AR B T8 N H b U SRR B B
REEEI R ¢

2018 2017

—E-NF T+

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F T ARET T

At 1 January Rn—A—H 6,964 6,964

Reversal of provision BB R (1,509) -

At 31 December RNt+=—A=+—H 5,455 6,964
LOANS RECEIVABLES 6. EWER

2018 2017

—E-N\F —F—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETFIT

Loan receivables due within 1 year R—FREHZ EWREK - 10,000

Less: loss allowance B ORE R - (7,500)

Loan receivables due within 1 year — net R—FARH 2z BRER—F5E - 2,500

(i) In 2017, a loan of RMB10,000,000 due from an
independent third party was unsecured and interest free.
The loan was fully repaid within 2018.
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26. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 26. EWWER (&)
(i) The movements in the specific loss allowance for loan i) FAREREREREDZ2FH N
receivables during the year are as follows: T 5
2018 2017
—E-NF —ET—+tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETTT
At 1 January w—A—H 7,500 10,000
Reversal (Note 6) 1% (fiat6) (7,500) (2,500)
Written off i 8 - _
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H - 7,500
(i) The Directors consider the carrying amount of loan (i) ZBERA BRERZEEEEE
receivables approximates their fair value. NEERE -
27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27. BERBRESEEY

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. The directors consider the carrying amount of
these assets approximates their fair value.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s cash and bank balances
denominated in RMB amounted to RMB158,340,000 (2017:
RMB110,428,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

RAeRBTEREBRAEERERERIR
B A=EAHAT 2 RHRITHER
EEZRA WFEEEZREEEEATE
& e

M-ZE—NE+-_A=+—0 K&£HE
NARBHEZRESRRBRITEHREAR
#£ 158,340,000 (=T —tF : AR
110,428,0007T) - AR TEEER LA
HabEH - A - RIBPBAREZIMNEE
BHRTE RHEEERMNETERE A%
s REREETINEEL 2 RITH
ARBHBBEMEE o

EMEEEREACEXROHERAH
T N\FFEH
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28. TRADE PAYABLES

28. EREZERM

Ak

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

AT AEREZR BN ENESERANER
BT -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E2—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARETIT

Current BHA 4,390 7,654
31-90 days 31-90H 3,578 5,831
Over 90 days B3E90H 23,737 21,716
31,705 35,201

The average credit period from the Group’s trade creditors is 90
to 180 days.

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purchases. The directors consider the carrying amount of
trade payables approximates their fair value.

LOAN FROM GOVERNMENT AUTHORITY

Loan was obtained from Huinan County Finance Bureau for the
purpose of research and development activities of the Group.
The loan is unsecured and bear interest at one year term saving
interest rate promulgated by The People’s Bank of China plus
0.3% per annum. The loan is repayable by instalments until July
2022 as follows:

29.

AEEESERAZFHEEHRRORAE
180H -

ENEZEFITIZEEREERESR -
EERRENESERZEEERLAF
BEEE -

B #EE

1R S B BB BRI AR E AR
R  ZEERAERA  EFEAR
RITEMH —FHARBENZMNOIERF
FIERGFE - ZZERERTIAFARZE
ZZF L AFIHEIEE :

2018 2017

—E-NF —F—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBT T

Within one year —F RN 1,240 1,333
After one year but within two years R—FEEMFEAN 620 635
After two years but within five years PRRFEEERFR 490 1,002
2,350 2,970
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30. DEFERRED INCOME 30. IEILEW A
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
At 1 January n—HA—H 27,114 27,863
Arising from government grants 2K B BT B 20,434 1,200
Credited to profit or loss (Note 6) RIERWIR% (F:E6) (1,789) (1,949)
At 31 December Nt+=—A=+—H 45,759 27,114
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HEAEE 45,759 27,114
Portion classified as current liabilities DERRBE EBH (589) (1,789)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities S A3 ER# & E3b1D 45,170 205,325
During the year ended 2018, the Group received government AEER - ZT—\FRESETMETHD
grants of approximately RMB20,434,000 (2017: RMB1,200,000) MEEEZMBREE T AREENRKE &R
from Jilin Province Finance Bureau and Huinan County BIREMER EEEE — P 2 BITH
Finance Bureau in relation to support investments on plant and Bh#) A R#20,434,000C( =T — L4
equipment for further research and development of the Group's AR %1,200,0007T) °
intangible assets.
31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 31. EEEFREH
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as BEMEBHEERAGBZONAT
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETTT
Deferred tax assets: BETIEEE ¢
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — R EEB121E A&k E 2
after more than 12 months REFIBE E (944) (316)
Deferred tax liabilities: REFIEBE
- Deferred tax liabilities to be — SR BIE1 218 A U E Z
recovered after more than 12 months EERIBEE 52 -
Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities, net REFRIB(EE) BEFHE (892) (316)

TMAEEREEA(CEERMERAR 109
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2018
—B-N\F
RMB’000
AR®T

2018
—ZE-\F
Number of
shares Amount

B 8
RMB’000

ARBT R

387,750,000

172,500,000

560,250,000 56,025
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33. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF 33. XA AFHNEERABREREEN

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY )
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (@) AQAFTNEEERF/R
As at 31 December
R+=ZRA=1-—
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Notes RMB’OO_O RMB'OO_O
BisE ARETR ARETTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Bearer biological assets TNRBEYEE 11,745 11,440
Property, plant and equipment ME  BEREE 150,627 159,818
Investment properties KEEEE 2,854 2,854
Prepaid land lease payments fEft LA E 15,068 15,520
Construction in progress BET % ; 67,588 44127
Investment in subsidiaries BAW% AR E 20 5,000 5,000
Intangible assets WEE - =
Deferred tax assets L%RIE BE 944 316
253,826 239,075
Current assets mEEE
Inventories 7E 50,474 50,292
Trade receivables U B SRR 249,326 244,855
Contract assets SNBE ‘ 45,309 -
Other receivables, deposits HibEWZUE « 5T
and prepayments NI A 223,940 107,312
Amounts due from subsidiaries B B A R E 20 6,032 4,018
Loan receivables EWE - 2,500
Prepaid land lease payments B LAE 452 454
Financial assets at fair value through BRTHEG ABED
profit or loss BB E 571,612 -
Available-for-sale financial assets A HENBEEE - 483,000
Cash and cash equivalents BELBEESEEY 157,697 110,096
1,304,842 1,002,527
Current liabilities REa
Trade payables eS8 HERR 31,481 35,000
Contract liabilities anaE ‘ 14,779 -
Other payables, deposits received HipRrz0E  BWGEI &
and accruals KETE 278,032 110,197
Amounts due to subsidiaries 1 BB A R0 20 5,000 5,000
Deferred income FEEWA 589 1,789
Income tax payable JERT TSN 20,645 27,380
Other tax payables ot & (S IE 17,071 21,301
Loan from government authority HTHEER 1,240 1,333
Dividend payable FERTARE 9,326 1,447
378,163 203,447
Net current assets mBEEFE 926,679 799,080
Total assets less current liabilities BEERNLBDAR 1,180,505 1,038,155
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33. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF 33. A RN EEEEREREN

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued) BE (&)
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (continued) (@ ATLAFMEEEBR(E)
As at 31 December
Wt+t=A=+—H
2018 2017
—E-N\E e
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BiteE ARETR ARET T
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Loan from government authority BT B ER 1,110 1,637
Deferred income FEEIA 45,170 25,325
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREEE 52 -
46,332 26,962
Net assets EEZE 1,134,173 1,011,193
EQUITY B
Share capital PR 32 56,025 56,025
Reserves e (b) 1,078,148 955,168
Total equity ESEE 1,134,173 1,011,193

These financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2019.

ZEMBBRER_ZE—NEF=A
“tAREEESHERREEMN -

ZHANG HONG ZHAO BAO GANG
[EIN s =]
Director Director
BF BF
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33. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF 33. A RN EEEEREREN

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued) 28 (&)
(b) Movement of reserves of the Company (b) AATFEHEH
Statutory
Share surplus Retained
premium reserve profits Total
BR1RE EERGBRE RE & F st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR¥Tr AR%Tx
(Note i) (Note ii)
(Htati) (K azii)
At 1 January 2017 MRZZE—+4F
—H—H 51,098 33,242 726,463 810,803
Profit for the year AREE ) A - - 144,365 144,365
Appropriation to statutory B EEAE
surplus reserve RBEREE - - - -
At 31 December 2017 R-ZE—+4F
+=—RA=+—H 51,098 33,242 870,828 955,168
Profit for the year AN & g A - - 162,198 162,198
Dividends paid AR - - (39,218) (39,218)
Appropriation to statutory B =SAE
surplus reserve BER - - - -
At 31 December 2018  R=-ZT— \F
+=—HA=+—H 51,098 33,242 993,808 1,078,148
()  Share premium iy mHEE

The Company’s share premium account represents AR I im B A B R TR

the premium arising from shares issued at a price in
excess of their par value per share.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC
and the Company’s articles of association, the
Company and its PRC subsidiaries will appropriate
10 percent of their annual statutory net profit (after
offsetting any prior years’ losses) to the statutory
surplus reserve account. When the balance of
such reserve reaches 50 percent of these entities’
share capital, any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to
offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus shares.
However, such statutory surplus reserve must be
maintained at a minimum of 25 percent of share
capital after such issuance.
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34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

34, BAREISE

REER  AEESFTAERERENE

35.

36.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had capital commitments
contracted for but not provided for as follows:

AASEINT

2018 2017

—E-NF —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Acquisition of intangible assets Wi & 1,750 1,750
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BAYE - M= MK 171 327
1,921 2,077

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions concerned with numbers of key
management during the year comprised only remuneration
paid to the Executive Directors, and is set out in Note 14 to the
financial statements.

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, the Group has the following transactions with
related parties:

35. BEALRS

FRBLRTETEERBZARBEAL

RHEBRFRAATEETINME

BRI TRRMEE14 ©

Hif &

Bt S4R A M MR Al R ES -

AEBEBE B TIIRS

2018 2017
—E-N\EF Tt
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T
Salaries paid to a close family member XNHETEEN
of a director EES e 47 151

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level of
risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes judgements to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

36. EXEREE

EXEE

AEEEREAZ TEARRREALH

A RHEE SR BE

17 5% 38 B2 J fea 7K ¥ 48

Y B S R RS (E A RIS A A
BRLE - MR R RIS -

AEETEG N EHEERNRBRERRE &
BIE - NEARHERSEREKTFERT
BB AR L7 SR A0 4F BR S AR PR A T RE AR
ERREELAEBLMRREHRKSE
B YREEERENECHERNRRENE
i H R o

EMEEEREACEXROHERAH
T N\FFEH
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36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 36.

Capital management (continued)

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure using a gearing ratio, which is total debts divided
by adjusted capital. Total debts represent total borrowings.
Adjusted capital includes all components of shareholders’ equity
less unrealized reserves.

In order to maintain or adjust the gearing ratio, the Group may
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2018 and 2017 was 0.2% and
0.3% respectively, calculated as follows:

EXEREE(H)

BEXREE(E)

REZEZENED  REBABEABFELXME
RERHEBERREZEE - MEKAEE
NERABRER - @FABREEERE - &
@%ﬁ$@%%ﬁ%%%éﬁﬁﬁ*ﬁﬁ

REFIREENBEL R - NEEF B
BT AERBEEAN - (FHHFOE
BREXHEEENRDELE °

RZEBE—N\FER_ZT—+tF+_A=+—
AZEARBRELES R AE0.2%5%0.3% °
AHEMT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —F—tF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TF T ARET T

Total debts B
— Loan from government authority — BT E R 2,350 2,970
2,350 2,970
Shareholders’ equity IR 1,128,121 1,011,027
Gearing ratio BEREEEX 0.2% 0.3%
37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. BERER
Financial risk management B RREE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk,
price risk and fair values risk. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments either for hedging or for trading
purposes. These risks are managed by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices as described below to
minimise potential effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables, contract assets
and loan receivables. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade, other and loan receivables. The
Group allows an average credit period of 180 days to its
trade customers. The amounts presented in the balance
sheets are net of loss allowance.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)
The Group does not have any significant credit risk
exposure to any single trade counterparty or any Group
of trade counterparties having similar characteristics. It
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables,
contract assets, loan receivables and cash and bank
balances included in the consolidated balance sheet
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to the Group’s financial assets.

The Group’s management performs periodic credit
evaluations/reviews of its customers and ensure that sales
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.
The Group places deposits with major banks in Mainland
China, to limit the amount of credit exposure to any
financial institution. Trade and bills receivables, contract
assets and other receivables are subject to the expected
credit loss model. To lower the Group’s exposure to credit
risk, the Group may request deposits from certain of their
customers before delivery of goods.

The Group has trade receivables from sales of products
that are subject to HKFRS 9’s new expected credit
loss model. The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables
from initial recognition. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the ageing days.
The expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales and the corresponding historical credit
losses experienced. The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables. On that basis, the loss
allowance as at 31 December 2018 was determined as
follows for trade receivables:

37. MBREREE (&)
B35 LB IR (1)

()

=E =R (E)

ARG B\ AT A BRI E —
F—HEHRHGHTFARZEANEE
B o AEEE S EBRRERAA
BZEEETENTPELHEE -

FEWE SRR - B sR - E
WER - BHNEE R RRITH
BREEEERBERAMIINER
1B /37 5 B 51 AN 5% 81 B0 B 7% B B K
EHEREERR

AEEEEEEMHETFPETE
ERERA - WIERER AR &
FELEZEFPHEE - AREKE
RIFRPBERENETERT - AR
HAEREEA-FAREENERER
R BWE S REBEFAREME
WRIRAEETRAEEBEEL -
REEAKEREY 2 EERR
AEETERERNERAERET
BEPREHRS -

AEEAAETREEM B REER
FORMH B EEBREANER
HEEHRYEN - ARERAE
B BREERFORETEFE
BHREEER RUTHRE &
MEESRYEERBEERETEDR
AWMBHER - RFHERREES
B EHRURREREBEBEEE
B B S ARl D 4R - TRHIB R X
ERHENNRERRAHEA L
BHERBEEE - BEBEXE
HER B A RREY 8 E P & E R
HENNEBRERZNE B LA
BEER - RUEE > R_F—N
FH-A=1t-HHNEZEEEX
ERBEDEELT
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37. BiiERERE (&)
Financial risk management (continued) B R EE ()
(@) Credit risk (continued) (@ EEREGE)
Over
Within 6 months to Over 18
6 months 18 months months Total
HBiB6E A
618 A LA Z18{8 A HiE18EA st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR%¥Tr AR¥Tx
At 31 December 2018 R =-ZT—/\F+_A
=+—H
Gross carrying amount  BREZAE 232,039 24,357 13,316 269,712
Expected loss rate TE R 1R =R 0-10% 10-25% 100%
Loss allowance BERERERE 4,056 3,014 13,316 20,386

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as
net impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

Previous accounting policy for impairment of trade
receivables

An allowance for impairment is made where there is an
identified loss event which, based on previous experience,
is evidence of a reduction in the recoverability of the cash
flows.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the Company’s board of directors when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on
rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest
date the Group and the Company can be required to pay.
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amount

REE
RMB’000

AR®TR

31,705
14,779
280,446
20,645
16,754
9,326

2,350

376,005

Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted

cash flow
HEES 52!
BEemBasE
RMB’000
AR¥T R

376,107

Within

1 year
oron
demand
—FERH
RER
RMB’000
ARETR

374,968

More than
1 year but
less than
2 years
—F#HE
MER
RMB’000
ARETR

More than
2 years but
less than

5 years
MERE
1R
RMB’000
AR¥TR

More than
5 years

LE%
RMB’000
ARBTR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R T RE
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37. BiiERERE (&)
Financial risk management (continued) B R EE ()
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FIEmE P
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its AREFHFEREEIERBETE
borrowings from the bank and the Huinan County Finance B R BNEE o RIZEF =X
Bureau. Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group EEHEZRSASEEEmHEEREERE
to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate MExmEE SEEEBEMNAEEH
profile as monitored by the management is set out below: FEFREF R :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRAI=E BERRAI=
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARET T AREBTIT
Variable rate borrowings ¥ 8 fEE
Loan from government B EE R
authority 1.8% 2,350 3.66% 2,970

The interest rate and terms of repayment of the Group’s
borrowings are disclosed in Note 29 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2018, it was estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease or
increase the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits by RMB23,500 (2017: RMB25,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for the borrowings in
existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase or
decrease represents the management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date.

Currency risk

The Group mainly operated in the PRC with most of
the transactions settled in Renminbi and did not have
significant exposure to risk resulting from changes in
foreign currency exchange rates.
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(UAREZT)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)

Price risk

The Group is not exposed to any equity price risk or

commodity price risk.

(€)

(f)

Fair value estimation

(i

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed
under the accounting standards.

37. MEEREE (&)
B R R ()
ERAR
7SR A A AL R (E A AR
KA ERERR -

()

AT AL

(i)

RFEER
ZEHHABEE NI ERER T
AP EBRRARENTET
AWM AFENHE LG - B
15 K TE A B P 3 A BUE
MAERERER  ARERE
SR EAKESRTAD /=
o

2018 2017
—E-N\F —FE—tF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET R ARETIT
Level 3 Recurring fair value SF=FBH&EEEAFE
measurements T2
Financial assets at fair value BRAFETAEBEH
through profit or loss s EE 23 571,612 -

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for
recurring fair value measurements during the year.
For transfers in and out of level 3 measurements see
(i) below.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the
end of the year.

REAR - KEUERTEAES
—RZERZ R -
—EAGEBAREHATX
(i) °

AEBBE BN ERBRAT
B REBE A R B
@ -

EMEEEREACEXROHERAH

—T— ) \FF3f
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) B L B T ()
Financial risk management (continued) B R b B ()

(f)  Fair value estimation (continued)

(f)

DFAEME (&)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (continued) () AXFEERGE)
Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded E—BR: RERMSELERS
in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, MeEBmTAPINAREEZ
and trading and available-for-sale securities) is based PTETR  URARGHAER
on quoted market prices at the end of the year. The AHEEZES)NATER
quoted market price used for financial assets held by RERMMIZMETE - K&
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments EFFMBEEEANTISR
are included in level 1. BRETEAE ZEIES
WIIAE—ER -
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that FoER: WINIERMIS L
are not traded in an active market (for example, over- RZM e TE (W - HIMT
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation ATE)MRATFEZAGHER
technigues which maximise the use of observable METE - ZZHERMREME
market data and rely as little as possible on entity- A ERmEEIE - YHRER
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required 2 ﬁ?ﬁﬁ’a’% FEME o WaTE
to fair value an instrument are observable, the NEEMREEHEREA
instrument is included in level 2. %ﬁ?ﬁﬁj—mﬁ%—i BIET A
WHIAE ZER o
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not FZER: W EHXZEEE
based on observable market data, the instrument is B A\ BRI 3E IR IR A B R T 55
included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity HEEE IBEAIAEERT
securities. AE=ZEH o ltAR ETRA
BHEZIER
(i)  Fair value measurements using significant (i) f/ﬁEETT§€§?ﬁ/\§M§

unobservable inputs (level 3)
The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year:

FTERFE(E=ER)
T%zﬁlJﬁAiﬁq”*Fi&Iﬁ
E;]z*z :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETTT

Opening balance FHHEH - -
Reclassified from available-for-sale B EHEENMBEEE

financial assets B HLE 483,000 -

Acquisitions g 967,000 —

Disposals HE (885,000) —

Net gain on financial assets at RATEFAERL
fair value through profit or loss BF 7% & B B )3 M aR 6,612 -
Closing balance FRER 571,612 =
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

37. MEEAREE(H)

Financial risk management (continued) B R b B 2 (4])
(f)  Fair value estimation (continued) f AP EME
(i) Fair value measurements using significant (i) FAEZFoJBREAEE

unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued)

The above instruments included in level 3 represent
wealth management products, both principal
and non-principal guaranteed, issued by financial
institution in the PRC which was classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit of loss.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3

FEAFE(E=ER) (&)
EXEZERARENT RS
PSR ETRIENE
o BIERARIERA - ZFE
TESBAEEAFETAERE
R IEEE °

RER - F—BHE - £_ER

during the year. RE=EREWEER o

FETABERGARBER TR
BEEENBHF LRGSR -

The key unobservable input is the expected
annualized return rate of the financial product which
is determined by the financial institution.

st BARTT I SRR A R IR 1T
M= EF T BACOME ZZ -
mATA E b B e REF & - A
RS TAIE == | R T UN
R#517,0007T (= —+ 4 :

If the interest rate on interest-bearing bank deposits
had been 100 basis points higher/lower than the
prevailing interest rate, with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit would have been
approximately RMB517,000 higher/lower (2017: nil).

).
38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 38. BiBAERMBABERER M
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY 2 HHE

REER - T-NFR-_T—+F+—A
=t HFERNMBEERMBEERN
BREMEFTR XAt T IA 3 48 -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2018 and 2017
may be categorised as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\E T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Financial assets HBEE
Financial assets at fair value through WA EFABSNTBEE
profit or loss 571,612 =
Available-for-sale financial assets AR ENTEEE - 483,000
Loan and receivables (including cash B EWFIE
and bank balances) (BiEHR e RIRITER) 678,383 466,360
Financial liabilities 3=
Financial liabilities measured IRESHRCA S BN B B &
at amortised cost 421,816 227,045
39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 39. Z#tE#%HE

EZgR T NAF=A-TNLAEHA
RRETIE L S SR -

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2019.
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LEMBERE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the  A&EEFEHE D NBKEZTEHRE 2 BETA
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published BIBEE 7 ¥4  EELRBEMEHINOT -
audited financial statements is set out below.
Operating Results RS
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1t—-HILEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
—E-N\F —E—+F “E—RE “E—FF —E—NE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARETT ARETT AR®ETT ARETT
Revenue \ 647,672 645,303 654,119 539,134 601,715
Cost of sales HEKA (115,554) (114,250) (135,266) (108,352) (115,213)
Gross profit EA 532,118 531,053 518,853 430,782 486,502
Other income and net gains ERA R E
or losses Eﬁ?ﬁ/%ﬁ 58,188 24,008 16,135 23,913 18,309
Distribution and selling costs DHRHERT (375,480) (335,128) (327,202) (271,170) (276,949)
Administrative expenses AR (28,450) (47,165) (40,400) (45,534) (67,901)
Profit from operations IR R 186,376 172,768 167,386 137,991 159,961
Finance costs %ﬁéﬁﬁw (53) = (101) (209) (297)
Profit before income tax BB SR AR A 186,323 172,768 167,285 137,782 159,664
Income tax expense FSHF X (25,107) (28,366) (24,615) (20,144) (26,879)
Profit for the year attributable to ~ FRAARHER A
owners of the Company FE(EER 161,216 144,402 142,670 117,638 132,785
Assets and Liabilities EERAE
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ZE-N\E —T—+F —T—RE -1 —E—E
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R AREBTIL ARBTTL ARBTT ARETL
Bearer biological assets N BEMEE 11,745 11,440 10,844 5,557 5,169
Property, plant and equipment I ER B 156,591 166,133 172,672 134,986 144,307
Prepared lease payments AR LS 15,068 15,520 15,974 16,428 16,882
Construction in progress T2 67,588 44127 23,271 74,557 66,781
Intangible assets BV EE - - - 659 2,519
Deferred tax assets BLREEE 944 316 = = =
Current assets RBEE 1,302,905 1,000,536 852,495 675,807 548,008
Current liabilities mEEE (375,484) (200,083) (180,198) (152.941) (151,239)
Non-current liabilities FEREaE (46,332) (26,962) (28,433) (31,098) (26,110)
Net assets BEFE 1,133,025 1,011,027 866,625 723,955 606,317
Share capital % 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025
Reserves e 1,077,000 955,002 810,600 667,930 550,292
Total equity BnEs 1,133,025 1,011,027 866,625 723,955 606,317
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